
 

 Page 1  
  

 
 Rathdrum 

                                         City Council Agenda 
                                March 11, 2020  
                                      6:00 p.m. 
   
 
 
Location:  City Council Chamber 
  8047 W. Main Street     
  Rathdrum, ID  83858 
  (208) 687-0261 
 
 
 

WELCOME-PLEASE TURN OFF CELL PHONES- Thank You. 
 

 
1) CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER 
 
2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
3) ROLL CALL 

 
4) AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA 

 
5) ACTION ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR APPROVAL  

A) Special Council Minutes of February 26, 2020 
B) Regular and Special Bills as presented 

 
6) CEREMONIES AND REPORTS 

 
7) VISITORS COMMENTS – An opportunity to address concerns not on the agenda  

(No formal action allowed – 3-minute time limit per issue) issues may be placed on 
subsequent agenda. Comments regarding performance by city employees are 
inappropriate at this time and should be directed to the Mayor, either by subsequent 
appointment or after tonight’s meeting, if time permitting. Repeated comments of the 
same or similar topic will be considered out of order and not allowed. 
 
 



 

 Page 2  
  

8) OLD BUSINESS 
 

9) NEW BUSINESS 
A) ACTION ITEM: Consideration of the Phone System Upgrade 
B) ACTION ITEM: Consideration of Memorandum of Understanding and Construction 

Cooperative Agreement with the Idaho Department of Transportation for SH41 
widening project from Hayden Ave to Boekel Rd. 

C) ACTION ITEM: Consideration of the Professional Services Agreement with Lake City 
Engineering for Intersection Improvements at Meyer Road – Lancaster Road 

D) ACTION ITEM: Consideration of the acceptance for Grant of Right-of-Way for unnamed 
roadway East of Corbin Crossing South 

E) ACTION ITEM: Consideration of the Westwood Pine Preliminary Long Plat 
 

11) STAFF REPORTS 
A) Public Works Reporting  
B) Police Reporting 
C) Park and Recreation Reporting 
D) City Administrator  

 
12) MAYOR’S REPORT/APPOINTMENTS 
      
13) COUNCIL REPORTS    

 
14) ADJOURN 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rathdrum City Hall is an ADA accessible building.  Assistance for persons with disabilities 
will be provided upon 24-hours’ notice prior to the meeting. 



Council  
Calendar 

March 11th , 2020 

 
 
 

March 11 6:00 pm Regular Council Meeting 
March 12 10:30 am  Senior Center Meeting 
March 12 1:30 pm  KMPO 
March 12 6:00 pm Citizen’s Academy 
March 13 8:00 am  Council Payday 
March 18 6:00 pm Planning & Zoning Commission 
March 19 11:50 am Chamber Luncheon 
March 19 6:00 pm Citizen’s Academy 
March 24 8:00 am KCATT 
March 25 6:00 pm Regular Council Meeting 
March 26 6:00 pm Citizen’s Academy 

   
   
   
   



 

	 Page	1  	
	 	

 
 Rathdrum 

                                         Special Council Minutes 
                                       February 26, 2020  
                                              5:30 p.m. 
   
 

 

Location:   City Council Chamber 
    8047 W. Main Street         
    Rathdrum, ID  83858 
    (208) 687‐0261 
 
 
 

WELCOME‐PLEASE TURN OFF CELL PHONES‐ Thank You. 
 

 
1) CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER 
 

Meeting called to order at 5:35 pm 
 
2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 
3) ROLL CALL 

 
PRESENT:                         Councilor Hill, Councilor Laws, Councilor Rickard, Councilor Adams 

and Mayor Holmes. 
ABSENT:        
STAFF:                               City Administrator Duce, City Clerk Halligan, City Planner Siess and 

City Attorney Herrington 
 
4) AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA 

 
5) ACTION ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR APPROVAL  

A) Council Minutes of February 12, 2020 
B) Regular and Special Bills as presented 
C) Beer & Wine License for Bi‐Mart 

 
            City Administrator gave a brief presentation on the consent calendar 



 

	 Page	2  	
	 	

 
Councilor Rickard made a MOTION that we approve the Consent Calendar as 
presented.  Motion seconded by Councilor Hill. 

      
AYES:  Councilor Rickard  

Councilor Hill  
  Councilor Laws 
  Councilor Adams 
NAYES:  None 
ABSENT:   

 
             Passed by all 
 
6) VISITORS COMMENTS – An opportunity to address concerns not on the agenda  

(No formal action allowed – 3‐minute time limit per issue) issues may be placed on 
subsequent agenda. Comments regarding performance by city employees are 
inappropriate at this time and should be directed to the Mayor, either by subsequent 
appointment or after tonight’s meeting, if time permitting. Repeated comments of the 
same or similar topic will be considered out of order and not allowed. 
 
Kelly Guzman  
13900‐2 Lauren Loop 
Rathdrum, ID 
 
I am here tonight to ask a few questions that are relative to the Kootenai County 
Emergency preparedness survey.  Does the City have an Emergency plan in the case of a 
disaster? 
 
Mayor Holmes stated that we do have an Emergency Plan in place but we do need to 
readdress it because we have a lot of new staff.  The mayor is the only person that can 
declare a disaster. 
 

7) WORKSHOP – PLANNING AND ZONING TRAINING 
 

Will Herrington 
Lawyer and Planner 
 
Mr. Herrington gave a power point presentation on the Understanding your 
responsibilities and the different processes in Planning and Zoning. 
 
Mr. Herrington went over these topics: 

 Approaching your responsibilities 

 Differences in two types of hearings 

 Process and outcomes – Legislative 

 Process and outcomes – Quasi Judicial 



 

	 Page	3  	
	 	

 Land use issues you will encounter 
 
          
 

 
8) ADJOURN 

 
Meeting was adjourned at 8:10 pm 
 

 
 
_____________________________________ 

                                                                          Vic Holmes, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
________________________________________ 
Sherri L Halligan, City Clerk 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Rathdrum City Hall is an ADA accessible building.  Assistance for persons with disabilities 

will be provided upon 24‐hours’ notice prior to the meeting. 























 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 

City of Rathdrum 
8047 W Main St Unit 1 

Rathdrum, ID 83858 
Connect Migration Budgetary Quote 

  

 
 

Eric Zuleger 

Sr. Account Mgr. 

Black Box Network Services 

9155 Cottonwood Lane 

Maple Grove, MN 55369 

t.763-657-5439 

www.blackbox.com 

 

2/25/2020 



 
 
 
This is a budgetary quote to migrate your phone system to Connect.  This quote also includes a new 
ST50A switch to replace your existing unsupported switch.  The City of Rathdrum is responsible for 
providing a server on a supported version of Hyper V. Web based Connect Client training, administration 
training and post cut support are included in this budgetary quote. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

The quotation provided herein by Black Box Network Services represents only a cursory view of this project and is strictly for budgetary 
purposes only and may be used as such for 60 days from the date of this quote. The final components, configuration, costs, performance and 

warranties for the actual completion of this project as represented in this budgetary quotation are subject to change at any time without prior 
notice. Furthermore, this budgetary quotation may not be comprehensive in nature, and may require additional charges, including but not 

limited to, engineering, design, hardware, software, licenses, permits, taxes, intellectual property, industrial property, testing, freight, patent 
rights or certification. Regardless of its content, this budgetary quote and all its contents are not intended to constitute a contract, binding 

agreement, or an amendment to any existing contract or agreement. This budgetary quotation and all of its contents contain Black Box 
Network Services information that is privileged, confidential, proprietary in nature, or subject to trademark and use or disclosure of this 

information without the prior written consent of Black Box Network Services is strictly prohibited 







r:\public works\itd\sh41 widening\memo kj-cc - 3.5.2020.docx 

Memo 
To:   City Council 

From:  Kevin Jump 

CC:   

Date:  March 5, 2020 

Re:  SH41 Widening Improvements 

At the February 12th City Council meeting, we provided a brief presentation about 
ITD’s financial participation request of the City of Rathdrum.  We provided an 
itemized list of the financial components of ITD’s request, the project schedule and a 
few matters which we are still researching/discussing. 

The attached Cooperative Construction Agreement defines the expectations and 
obligations for the City of Rathdrum’s participation in the SH41 Widening project. 

The attached Memorandum of Understanding defines the maintenance and/or 
ownership responsibilities of certain elements which are being created as part of the 
SH41 Widening project. 

Financial Participation – by City of Rathdrum 

The City of Rathdrum’s Financial Participation items are identified on Exhibit A.  
These items were thoroughly discussed with ITD representatives and we find them to 
be accurate.  However, there were a few lingering questions which were unanswered 
when we made our February 12th presentation. 

1.) This is a federal aid project.  With this said, ITD is receiving federal monies to 
construct the project.  The ITD participation on this project is 7.34% (92.66% 

federal monies).  For the certain major intersection improvements, on the SH41 
corridor, the City of Rathdrum is being asked to financially participate.  ITD 
has informed us that the City of Rathdrum is ineligible for participating at the 
local share-federal share financial terms.  Thus, the financial participation 
terms, as presented to the City Council on February 12th, remain unchanged. 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
8047 W. Main Street 
Rathdrum, ID  83858 

P  208.687.2700 
F  208.687.1377 



Memo KJ-CC - 3.5.2020.docx   Page 2 

2.) To avoid expensive future borings under the widened SH41 pavement with 
either water and/or sanitary sewer extensions, we were looking to get utility 
casing pipes constructed as part of the project.  As such, these utility casing 
pipe extensions are 100% Rathdrum’s responsibility. The unanswered 
matters pertained to the direct benefit of property owners to develop their 
properties.  Leon Duce has reached out to both Don Jacklin and Ragnar 
Arestad about their respective interests in financially participating in the 
identified utility casing pipe extensions. 

3.) The payment schedule has not yet been determined.  Although we remain 
hopeful that ITD will allow us to re-pay our project costs under a 10-year 
payment schedule, it is recognized that these terms have not yet been 
approved by the State of Idaho’s financial controller.  The attached agreement 
includes language, under Section II, 2., provides for the ability to negotiate a 
mutually-agreement payment schedule. 

 

Memorandum of Understanding 

The attached memorandum of understanding defines certain maintenance 
obligations for both the City of Rathdrum and ITD.  These items were thoroughly 
discussed with ITD representatives. 

 

Requested Action of Rathdrum City Council 

We are herein seeking that the Rathdrum City Council approve the attached 
Cooperative Construction Agreement and Memorandum of Understanding and 
authorize Mayor Holmes to execute both agreements on behalf of the City of 
Rathdrum. 

 





 

COOPERATIVE CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT 

For the Construction of: 

 

SH41, PRAIRIE AVE TO LANCASTER RD 

PROJECT NO. A020(098) 
KEY NO. 20098 

SH41, LANCASTER RD TO BOEKEL RD 

PROJECT NO. A020(120) 
KEY NO. 20120 

 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this     day of   ,   , 
by and between the IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT, hereafter called the State, and 
the CITY OF RATHDRUM hereafter called the City. This agreement will terminate with the final 
acceptance of the construction project in accordance with Subsection 105.15 of the 2018 Standard 
Specifications for Highway Construction. 

 

AGREEMENT: 

This agreement shall supersede previous construction agreements for SH41 within the stated limits 
but shall be complimentary to the Memorandum of Understanding for Maintenance dated . 
 

PURPOSE: 

The State has scheduled projects to reconstruct SH41 from Prairie Avenue to Lancaster Road and from 
Lancaster Road to Boekel Road. Work on the projects includes roadway and bridge construction, 
including traffic signals, utility work, bicycle & pedestrian facilities, and a pedestrian tunnel in the 
UPRR mainline overpass north embankment (MP 4.06). This Agreement will provide for the 
responsibilities of the parties regarding construction and maintenance of the projects. 

Authority for this Agreement is established by Section 40-317, Idaho Code. 

The parties agree as follows: 

SECTION I - The State will: 

1. Program the construction of the project and execute all necessary agreements with the Federal 
Highway Administration, securing the Federal Government's pro rata participation in the eligible 
construction costs. 

2. Advertise for the construction of the projects, open bids, prepare a contract estimate of cost based 
on the successful low bid, and notify the City thereof. 

3. Award contracts for construction of the separate projects based on the successful low bids.  

4. Assume its share of all construction and engineering costs for the projects, including but not limited 
to road and bridge construction, traffic signal installation, illumination, combined use 
pedestrian/bicycle pathway, utilities, and miscellaneous specialty items necessary to complete the 
projects. City’s financial responsibilities for the projects are detailed in Exhibit A. 



 

5. Construct the following items and utilities solely at the financial responsibility of the City. The City 
will reimburse the State 100% of the actual design and construction cost of these items. Estimated 
costs for these items are detailed on Exhibit A: 

a. Reset Fire Hydrants that do not currently have an existing easement. 
b. City water line & sewer line that do not currently have an existing easement. 
c. Conduit sleeves for future expansion of City utilities. 
d. Conduit sleeves to accommodate the installation of irrigation to the swales and between 

Hayden and Lancaster for irrigation to the median swales. 

6. Designate a resident engineer and other personnel, as the State deems necessary, to supervise and 
inspect construction of the projects in accordance with the plans, specifications and estimates in the 
manner required by applicable state and federal regulations. This engineer, or his authorized 
representatives, will prepare all monthly and final contract estimates and change orders. 

7. In cooperation with the City, establish and cause to be maintained all detours deemed necessary 
to best serve the public interests and to expedite the work. 

8. Install initial placement of Special Pavement Markings – stop bars, crosswalks, and arrows. 
Furnish and install all official guide signs at junctions of the urban extensions to the state highway 
system and all confirming and reassurance route markers and guide arrows along the urban 
extensions of the state highway system necessary to properly identify the State highways. 

9. Through issuance of an Encroachment Permit, allow the City to retain, maintain, connect to and 
improve all existing City-owned water lines, storm sewers, and sanitary sewer now in place on the 
state highway right-of-way and also new facilities to be installed within the new additional right-of-
way.  

10. Maintain complete accounts of all project funds received and disbursed, which accounting will 
determine the final project costs. 

11. Upon completion of the projects, after all costs have been accumulated and the final voucher paid 
by the Federal Highway Administration, provide a statement to the City summarizing the estimated 
and actual costs, indicating an adjustment for or against the City. Any excess funds transmitted by 
the City and not required for the projects will be returned. 

12. Retain ownership of the controller and cabinet for the traffic signals to be installed and assume all 
necessary maintenance responsibilities and costs thereof, except as provided in Sections II and III 
of this agreement, that will be required to keep the traffic signal, as installed, in continuous operation 
in conformance with the requirements of the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets 
and Highways, as adopted by the State. 

13. Upon completion of construction and annually thereafter, perform a complete check of the traffic 
signal equipment and operation, replace all signal lamps on a scheduled basis. 

14. Provide to the City of Rathdrum as-built plans of the completed project, in hard copy (11x17 & 
22x34) and digital (.pdf and .dwg or .dgn) including surveyed locations (Idaho State Plane NAD 
83 1992 adjustment Horizontal and NAVD 1988 vertical) of Sewer cleanouts, sewer manholes, 



 

termini of sewer mains, drywells, hydrants, horizontal and vertical fittings, valves, conduits for 
casings (City Utility), and termini of sewer services installed by the project. 

15. Provide at City expense a 4” conduit for future City of Rathdrum with pull boxes spacing not to 
exceed 1,000 feet under pathways and to center medians. 

16. Allow for the City to provide pedestrian scale illumination for pedestrian trails along SH41 
subject to appropriate coordination thru issuance of encroachment permits by ITD (see also 
section 2.16 (h)) 

 
SECTION II - The City will: 

1. Hereby approve the plans and specifications for bid. 

2. Within sixty (60) days of the first day of January 4, 2021, begin paying the State the actual sum 
represented by their share of work approved and awarded, estimated to be $1,718,632.47, via a 
mutually agreeable payment schedule with all remaining balance due on or before final acceptance 
of the project. 

3. Remit funds owed the State through the ITD payment portal at: 
https://apps.itd.idaho.gov/PayITD . 

4. Upon receipt of notification by the State of the lowest qualified bid received, if the City’s share 
does not exceed the amount set forth in Section II, Paragraph 2, by ten percent then transmit to the 
State the City’s share of such excess cost or enter into an agreement to pay such excess cost on a 
mutually agreeable payment schedule. 

5. Upon receipt of notification by the State for the water and sewer line, approve or deny bids for the 
respective items. 

6. Upon receipt of the statement referred to in Section I, Paragraph 12, indicating an adjustment in cost 
against the City, promptly remit to the State that amount through the ITD Payment Portal. 

7. Cooperate with the State in the selection and designation of suitable detour(s) routing during project 
construction. 

8. Through appropriate ordinance and police power, cooperate with and assist the State in prohibiting 
and removing encroachments on any part of the state highway right-of-way within the project limits 
as defined under this Agreement.  

9. Require that access points be shared whenever possible and will encourage the connection of 
parking areas during site plan review to encourage off-corridor circulation by permitting the 
movement of vehicles from property to property. The City may assist in determination of such 
access patterns by requiring additional considerations to facilitate off-corridor circulation. 

10. Will encourage the development of collector or connector streets parallel to Highway 41 to 
promote the flow of traffic to controlled intersections. 



 

11. Upon request to energize, assume all energy costs required to operate the traffic signals. Promptly 
notify the State of any equipment malfunction or required maintenance as outlined in the 
Memorandum of Understanding between the State and the City. 

12. Obtain concurrence of the State before using the traffic signal poles or mast arms for any purpose 
other than to support traffic control devices or luminaires. 

13. Maintain, erect, or install within the project limits only those traffic control devices, including signs, 
that are in conformance with the Manual of Uniform Traffic control Devices for Streets and 
Highways, as adopted by the State. 

14. Upon completion of the project, accept from the State ownership of all highway and street lighting 
equipment to be installed within the projects limits north of Hayden Avenue minus the intersection, 
and upon request to energize, assume all operation, and the costs thereof, required to maintain the 
equipment in continuous service during the hours of darkness, and not remove, alter or abandon the 
lighting equipment without the prior concurrence of the State. In the event that the "Average 
Maintained Foot- Candles" of the lighting system drops below seventy (70) percent of the original 
installed values, the City shall cause the light intensity to be restored to approximately the original 
values. Any combination of re-lamping and/or cleaning of fixtures may be used to achieve the 
necessary desired intensity. 

15. Comply with all pertinent sections of the current ITD Standard Specifications for Highway 
Construction in accomplishing all future trench backfill and pavement repairs on the state highways 
within the project limits. 

16. Apply for an Encroachment Permit from the State before installing or constructing any new, or 
relocating, any existing bicycle and pedestrian facilities or any existing City-owned water line, 
storm sewer, sanitary sewer or other facilities on the state highways within the project limits. 

17. Obtain concurrence from the State before vacating or closing any access points connecting to the 
state highways within the project limits. 

18. Obtain approval from the State before accepting any new street or alley access points connecting to 
the state highways within the project limits. 

 
SECTION III – General: 

1.  The Traffic Signal at Hayden Avenue & SH-41 and any Signal south of this intersection are not 
included in this agreement. 

2. Should any of the traffic signal installation be damaged or destroyed through the wrongful or 
negligent act of any third party, the City and State will make every effort to determine the identity 
and whereabouts of the responsible party, and the State will attempt collection of the cost of repair 
or replacement. The State agrees to advance funds for the repair or replacement based upon their 
proportionate share of the cost. 

3. Sufficient Appropriation. It is understood and agreed that the State and City are governmental 



 

agencies, and this Agreement shall in no way be construed so as to bind or obligate either beyond 
the term of any particular appropriation of funds by the Federal Government, the State 
Legislature or City Council as may exist from time to time. The State and the City reserve the 
right to terminate this Agreement if, in its sole judgment, the Federal Government,  the legislature 
of the State of Idaho or the City Council fails, neglects or refuses to appropriate sufficient funds 
as may be required for the State or the City to continue payments. Any such termination shall 
take effect immediately upon notice and be otherwise effective as provided in this Agreement. 

4. This Agreement shall become effective on the first date mentioned above and shall remain in full 
force and effect until amended or replaced upon the mutual consent of the State and the City. 

5. Subject to the limitations hereinafter set forth, each Party shall be responsible only for the acts, 
omissions or negligence of such Party’s own actions. Nothing in the Contract shall extend the 
tort responsibility or liability of either Party beyond that required by the Idaho Tort Claims Act, 
Idaho Code § 6-901 et seq. Each Party shall be responsible for damages to other parties in the 
performance of the Agreement. 

 

  



 

EXECUTION: 
 

This Agreement is executed for the State by its District Engineer for District One, and 
executed for the City by the Mayor, attested to by the City Clerk, with the imprinted Corporate 
Seal of the City of Rathdrum. 

 

IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT 
 

 

 

District Engineer 

 
 
 

ATTEST: CITY OF RATHDRUM 
 

 

 

City Clerk Mayor 

 
 

(SEAL) 

 
 

By regular/special meeting 
on  . 

 
 

gfb: 20098 & 20120 Rathdrum Const Coop.docx 
 



A020(098) SH-41, E PRAIRIE AVE TO LANCASTER RD, KOOTENAI CO - KN 20098

A020(120), SH-41, LANCASTER RD TO BOEKEL RD, RATHDRUM - KN 20120

EXHIBIT "A"

1.       City financial obligation for traffic signals (pro-rated based on number of additional signalized

                lanes entering the intersection from City Streets).  3.       UPRR Mainline and SH-41 Grade Separation:

a.                      Lancaster Road & SH 41: (City = 25% (4 of 16), State = 75%) -          State will provide additional 12’ width with separation barrier on each side of bridge and a pedestrian/bike tunnel 

 -          Estimated Total Cost = $ 700,000        in the north embankment for future pedestrian/bike accommodations.

 -          Lancaster Road – 8 lanes (4 lanes from the west) -          State will provide routine maintenance for the surface of the bridge, within the limits of the separation barrier.

 -          SH 41 – 8 lanes (4 lanes from each direction, north & south)        northbound and southbound separation barrier.

•         City Portion = $ 175,000.00 -          City will provide routine maintenance, snow removal, sweeping and graffiti removal for anything outside of the

•         State Portion = $ 525,000.00        outside of the main structure and approaches.

•         City will be responsible for 25% of the cost of the west side widening of the main structure and approaches.

b.                   Nagel Road & SH 41: (City = 42.9% (6 of 14), ITD = 57.1%) •         Estimated construction cost for widened bridge and approaches and 10% for mobilization = $1,200,000.00.

 -          Estimated Total Cost = $ 600,000 •         10% for revised design and 15% for construction engineering & contingency = $300,000.00.

 -          Nagel Ave – 6 lanes (3 lanes from each direction, east & west) •         Total estimated cost = $1,500,000.00

 -          SH 41 - 8 lanes (4 lanes from each direction, north & south) •         City portion = $ 375,000.00

•         City Portion = $ 257,400.00

•         State Portion = $ 342,600.00 4.       UPRR North Underpass

-          State will provide an underpass in the northern fill of the UPRR Mainline and SH-41 Grade Separation to accommodate

       future east-west pedestrian and bicycle movement.

2.         Utility work - City of Rathdrum owned: -          City will provide routine maintenance, snow removal, sweeping and graffiti removal for the underpass in addition to

                See Exhibit A-1 - Part 1-3 of 3        routine maintenance of the shared use path.

-          Water and Sewer Line Design and Construction

•         Design Costs estimated at $24,313.74.  Exhibit A-1 Part 1 of 3

•         Construction Costs estimated at $944,994.72 - Exhibit A-1 Part 2 of 3

•         City Cost = $881,968.73 - Exhibit A-1 Part 3 of 3

-          Sleeves to accommodate the installation of irrigation to the swales. Total City financial responsibility = 1 (a) 175,000.00$        

•     3 median swales (2 ea 4” sleeves x 50 ft x 3 locations = 300 Ft estimated at $7.00 per Ft 1(b) 257,400.00$        

•         City Cost = $2,100.00 2 911,232.47$        

•     19 crossings to sidewalk swales (2” sleeves x 30 ft) – 570 Ft estimated at $5.00 per Ft 3 375,000.00$        

•         City Cost = $ 2,850.00 1,718,632.47$   

2. Subtotal = 911,232.47$    



A1 T-O Labor

Staff Hours Rate Labor Cost

1 Senior Engineer 64 $52.74 $3,375.36

2 Engineer 25 $44.33 $1,108.25

3 Survey Manager 0 $46.97 $0.00

4  Surveyor 0 $33.00 $0.00

5 Survey Assist./EI 171 $27.27 $4,663.17

6 Admin 3 $22.59 $67.78

Sub Total 263 $9,214.56

B1 T-O Payroll, Fringe Benefit Costs & Overhead

Total Raw Labor Cost Approved Rate Overhead Total

$9,214.56 124.03% $11,428.81

C1 Net Fee

Total Raw Labor & Overhead Net Fee Fee Total

$20,643.37 12% $2,477.20

D1 FCCM

Total Raw Labor Cost Approved FCCM Rate FCCM Total

$9,214.56 0.58% $53.44

T-O Labor Total $23,174.02

E1 Escalation

Total Raw Labor & Overhead Esc Ratio Annual Esc

$20,289.53 0% 3.00% $0.00

E2 Expenses

Item

Estimated 

Amount Unit Cost Estimated Expense

1 Mileage 34 $0.580 $19.72

2 Postage $0 n/a $0.00

3 Printing $0 n/a $0.00

4 CADD Hours 112 $10.00 $1,120.00

5 GPS/Robot Hours 0 $65.00 $0.00

6 Agency Fees/Title Reports $0 n/a $0.00

7 Monument Stamping $0 n/a $0.00

T-O Expenses Total $1,139.72

T-O Total $24,313.74

     Agreement No. 4 - City of Rathdrum Portion

December 11, 2019

    SH 41,  Lancaster Rd to Boekel Rd, Rathdrum                                                 

     Key No. 20120

T-O Engineers 1 of 3 12/11/2019

gbrands
Typewritten Text
20098-20120 - EXHIBIT A-1 Part 1 of 3



Senior 

Engineer Engineer

Survey 

Manager Surveyor

Survey 

Assist./EI Admin Total

1.0 ADMINISTRATION

1.1 Team Progress Meetings 0

1.2 Progress Billing 0

Subtotal Administration 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2.0 SURVEY & MAPPING

2.1 Supplimental Field Utility Survey

Field Survey Work 0

Data Processing and Checking 0

Subtotal Survey and Mapping 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3.0 Utilites

3.1 City of Rathdrum Water and Sewer

3.1.1 Water and Sewer Coordination 10 4 7 21

3.1.2 Water and Sewer Plans and Details (13 sheets) 34 14 130 178

3.2.3 Water and Sewer Special Provisions 10 3 21 3 37

3.1.4 Water and Sewer Quantities and Estimate 5 4 10 19

3.1.5 Water and Sewer Final Submittal and QLPE Review 5 3 8

3.2 Utility Coordination

Utility Coordination 0

3.3 Parcel 33 Septic Relocation Coordination

Parcel 33 Septic Relocation Coordination 0

Subtotal Utilities 64 25 0 0 171 3 263

Grand Total 64 25 0 0 171 3 263

Agreement No. 4

T-O Engineers

     Key No. 20120

     SH 41,  Lancaster Rd to Boekel Rd, Rathdrum                                          

T-O Engineers 2 of 3 12/11/2019



Mileage Postage Printing CADD Hours

GPS/Robot 

Hours

Agency 

Fees/Title 

Reports

Monument 

Stamping

1.0 ADMINISTRATION

1.1 Team Progress Meetings

1.2 Progress Billing

Subtotal Administration 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2.0 SURVEY & MAPPING

2.1 Supplimental Field Utility Survey

Field Survey Work

Data Processing and Checking

Subtotal Survey and Mapping 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3.0 Utilites

3.1 City of Rathdrum Water and Sewer

3.1.1 Water and Sewer Coordination 17

3.1.2 Water and Sewer Plans and Details 112

3.2.3 Water and Sewer Special Provisions

3.1.4 Water and Sewer Quantities and Estimate

3.1.5 Water and Sewer Final Submittal and QLPE Review 17

3.2 Utility Coordination

Utility Coordination

3.3 Parcel 33 Septic Relocation Coordination

Parcel 33 Septic Relocation Coordination

Subtotal Utilities 34 0 0 112 0 0 0

Grand Total 34 0 0 112 0 0 0

     SH 41,  Lancaster Rd to Boekel Rd, Rathdrum                                          

     Key No. 20120

Agreement No. 4

T-O Engineers

T-O Engineers 3 of 3 12/11/2019



Idaho Transportation Department

Estimate 

Estimated Cost: $899,994.97

Contingency:  5.00%

Estimated Total: $944,994.72

County:  Kootenai

Season: SUMMER

Urban/Rural Type: RURAL

Highway Type: Four Lane

Work Type: RECONSTRUCTION/REALIGNMENT

Unit System: E

Spec Year: 01

Base Date: 12/11/19

Latitude of Midpoint:  0

Longitude of Midpoint:  0

District: 18112

Federal Project Number: A020(098)

State Project Number: 

Prepared by J Allen

Total Cost

gbrands
Text Box
20098-20120 - EXHIBIT A-1 Part 2 of 3



 Item  Number

Idaho Transportation DepartmentEstimate: 

 Quantity  Units  Unit Price  Extension
 Description
 Supplemental Description

203-125C

REM OF MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS

1,136.00 $10.00000FT $11,360.00

605-640A

ADJUST VALVE COVERS

7.00 $700.00000EACH $4,900.00

S600-20A

FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY

3.00 $5,500.00000EACH $16,500.00

S600-30A

PIPE FITTING

2.00 $1,000.00000EACH $2,000.00

(12" PIPE COUPLING)

S600-30B

PIPE FITTING

1.00 $1,000.00000EACH $1,000.00

(18" PIPE COUPLING)

S600-30C

PIPE FITTING

2.00 $800.00000EACH $1,600.00

(12" 11.25 DEG ELBOW)

S600-30D

PIPE FITTING

4.00 $1,000.00000EACH $4,000.00

(18" 22.5 DEG ELBOW)

S600-30E

PIPE FITTING

6.00 $1,000.00000EACH $6,000.00

(18" 11.25 DEG ELBOW)

S600-30F

PIPE FITTING

1.00 $800.00000EACH $800.00

(12" TEE)

S600-30G

PIPE FITTING

1.00 $1,050.00000EACH $1,050.00

(12"x12"x10" TEE)

Page 2 of 4 4:19:30PM
Wednesday, December 11, 2019



 Item  Number

Idaho Transportation DepartmentEstimate: 

 Quantity  Units  Unit Price  Extension
 Description
 Supplemental Description

S600-30H

PIPE FITTING

3.00 $1,000.00000EACH $3,000.00

(12"x12"x6" TEE)

S600-30I

PIPE FITTING

1.00 $1,200.00000EACH $1,200.00

(18"x18"x6" TEE)

S600-30J

PIPE FITTING

37.00 $125.00000EACH $4,625.00

SP CASING SPACER SUPPORT

S600-30K

PIPE FITTING

1.00 $3,000.00000EACH $3,000.00

(18" CROSS)

S600-30L

PIPE FITTING

2.00 $800.00000EACH $1,600.00

(18" X 12" REDUCER)

S900-50B

CONTINGENCY AMOUNT

1.00 $1,000.00000CA $1,000.00

POTHOLE GAS LINE

S901-05A

SP

1.00 $2,400.00000EACH $2,400.00

10" GATE VALVE

S901-05B

SP

6.00 $2,800.00000EACH $16,800.00

12" GATE VALVE

S901-05H

SP

3.00 $3,750.00000EACH $11,250.00

18" BUTTERFLY VALVE

S901-05Z

SP

1.00 $2,750.00000EACH $2,750.00

FIRE HYDRANT  RELOCATION

Page 3 of 4 4:19:30PM
Wednesday, December 11, 2019



 Item  Number

Idaho Transportation DepartmentEstimate: 

 Quantity  Units  Unit Price  Extension
 Description
 Supplemental Description

S901-06U

SP

115.00 $30.00000EACH $3,450.00

SAND BAGS

S911-05A

SP

302.00 $45.00000FT $13,590.00

10" WATER MAIN 

S911-05C

SP

1,113.00 $55.00000FT $61,215.00

18" WATER MAIN

S911-05G

SP

256.00 $180.00000FT $46,080.00

24" UTILITY CASING 

S911-05I

SP

503.00 $425.00000FT $213,775.00

36" UTILITY CASING 

S911-05J

SP

187.00 $50.00000FT $9,350.00

PIPE INSULATION

S911-05K

SP

1,969.00 $50.00000FT $98,450.00

12" WATER MAIN

S911-05L

SP

988.00 $320.00000FT $316,160.00

28" UTILITY CASING 

Z629-05A

MOBILIZATION

1.00 $41,089.97000LS $41,089.97

Estimate Total $899,994.97

Page 4 of 4 4:19:30PM
Wednesday, December 11, 2019



Idaho Transportation Department

Estimate 

Estimated Cost: $839,970.22

Contingency:  5.00%

Estimated Total: $881,968.73

County:  Kootenai

Season: SUMMER

Urban/Rural Type: RURAL

Highway Type: Four Lane

Work Type: RECONSTRUCTION/REALIGNMENT

Unit System: E

Spec Year: 01

Base Date: 12/11/19

Latitude of Midpoint:  0

Longitude of Midpoint:  0

District: 18112

Federal Project Number: A020(098)

State Project Number: 

Prepared by J Allen

City of Rathdrum
Portion

gbrands
Text Box
20098-20120 - EXHIBIT A-1 Part 3 of 3



 Item  Number

Idaho Transportation DepartmentEstimate: 

 Quantity  Units  Unit Price  Extension
 Description
 Supplemental Description

203-125C

REM OF MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS

721.00 $10.00000FT $7,210.00

605-640A

ADJUST VALVE COVERS

5.00 $700.00000EACH $3,500.00

S600-20A

FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY

3.00 $5,500.00000EACH $16,500.00

S600-30A

PIPE FITTING

2.00 $1,000.00000EACH $2,000.00

(12" PIPE COUPLING)

S600-30B

PIPE FITTING

1.00 $1,000.00000EACH $1,000.00

(18" PIPE COUPLING)

S600-30C

PIPE FITTING

2.00 $800.00000EACH $1,600.00

(12" 11.25 DEG ELBOW)

S600-30D

PIPE FITTING

1.00 $1,000.00000EACH $1,000.00

(18" 22.5 DEG ELBOW)

S600-30E

PIPE FITTING

0.00  EACH $0.00

(18" 11.25 DEG ELBOW)

S600-30F

PIPE FITTING

1.00 $800.00000EACH $800.00

(12" TEE)

S600-30G

PIPE FITTING

1.00 $1,050.00000EACH $1,050.00

(12"x12"x10" TEE)

Page 2 of 4 4:18:24PM
Wednesday, December 11, 2019



 Item  Number

Idaho Transportation DepartmentEstimate: 

 Quantity  Units  Unit Price  Extension
 Description
 Supplemental Description

S600-30H

PIPE FITTING

3.00 $1,000.00000EACH $3,000.00

(12"x12"x6" TEE)

S600-30I

PIPE FITTING

0.00  EACH $0.00

(18"x18"x6" TEE)

S600-30J

PIPE FITTING

37.00 $125.00000EACH $4,625.00

SP CASING SPACER SUPPORT

S600-30K

PIPE FITTING

0.00  EACH $0.00

(18" CROSS)

S600-30L

PIPE FITTING

2.00 $800.00000EACH $1,600.00

(18" X 12" REDUCER)

S900-50B

CONTINGENCY AMOUNT

1.00 $1,000.00000CA $1,000.00

POTHOLE GAS LINE

S901-05A

SP

1.00 $2,400.00000EACH $2,400.00

10" GATE VALVE

S901-05B

SP

6.00 $2,800.00000EACH $16,800.00

12" GATE VALVE

S901-05H

SP

0.00  EACH $0.00

18" BUTTERFLY VALVE

S901-05Z

SP

0.00  EACH $0.00

SP FIRE HYDRANT RELOCATION

Page 3 of 4 4:18:24PM
Wednesday, December 11, 2019



 Item  Number

Idaho Transportation DepartmentEstimate: 

 Quantity  Units  Unit Price  Extension
 Description
 Supplemental Description

S901-06U

SP

115.00 $30.00000EACH $3,450.00

SAND BAGS

S911-05A

SP

302.00 $45.00000FT $13,590.00

10" WATER MAIN 

S911-05C

SP

678.00 $55.00000FT $37,290.00

18" WATER MAIN

S911-05G

SP

256.00 $180.00000FT $46,080.00

24" UTILITY CASING 

S911-05I

SP

503.00 $425.00000FT $213,775.00

36" UTILITY CASING 

S911-05J

SP

187.00 $50.00000FT $9,350.00

PIPE INSULATION

S911-05K

SP

1,969.00 $50.00000FT $98,450.00

12" WATER MAIN

S911-05L

SP

988.00 $320.00000FT $316,160.00

28" UTILITY CASING 

Z629-05A

MOBILIZATION

1.00 $37,740.22000LS $37,740.22

Estimate Total $839,970.22

Page 4 of 4 4:18:24PM
Wednesday, December 11, 2019



Page 1 of 11 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

Between 

THE IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT 

And 

THE CITY OF RATHDRUM 

PURPOSE 

The IDAHO Transportation Department (ITD or the State) and the City of Rathdrum (the City) desire to provide 

for the maintenance of state highway routes for SH 41 M.P.  3.450 (North R/W line of Hayden Ave.) to M.P. 6.460 

(Boekel Rd.) (hereinafter referred to as the Project Section) and to arrange herein for the particular maintenance 

functions to be performed by the City and those to be performed by the State and to specify the terms and 

conditions under which such work will be performed. 

 

AUTHORITY 

Authority for this Memorandum of Understanding is established by Sections 40-310(5), 40-317(4), 67-2326 

through 67-2333 of the Idaho Code. 

 

RESPONSIBILITIES AND PROCEDURES 

This Memorandum of Agreement supersedes previous Cooperative Maintenance Agreements for the Project 

Section, but shall be complimentary to the Cooperative Construction Agreement dated  until 

such time of completion of the project and upon all assumption and responsibilities by the Parties as noted within 

said Cooperative Construction Agreement. In consideration of the mutual covenants and premises herein 

contained, it is agreed that the City will perform such maintenance work as is specifically delegated to it and the 

State will perform those particular functions of maintenance delegated to it on the state highway routes or portions 

thereof as hereinafter described under Sections 13 and 14 hereof, or as said sections may be subsequently modified 

with the written consent of the parties hereto acting by and through their authorized representatives. 

 

1. MAINTENANCE DEFINED 

Maintenance is defined as follows: 

a. The preservation and keeping of right-of-way and each type of roadway, structure, and facility in the 

safe and usable condition to which it has been improved or constructed, but does not include 

reconstruction or other improvement. 

b. Provisions as necessary for the safety and convenience of traffic and the upkeep of traffic control 

devices. 

c. General utility services such as roadside planting and vegetation control. 

d. Special or emergency maintenance or repair necessitated by accidents or by storms or other weather 

conditions, slides, settlements, or other unusual or unexpected damage to a roadway, structure or 

facility. 

e. Upkeep of illumination fixtures on the streets, roads, highways, and bridges, which are required for the 

safety of persons using the said streets, roads, highways, and bridges. 

 

2. DEGREE OF MAINTENANCE 

The degree and type of maintenance for each highway or portion thereof shall mean doing the work and 

furnishing the materials and equipment to maintain the highway facility herein described in a manner as 

near as practicable to the standard in which they were originally constructed and subsequently improved. 



Page 2 of 11 
 

 

 

3. HIGHWAY 

Highway, as used herein, includes the entire right-of-way in the Project Section which is secured or reserved 

for use in the construction and maintenance of the traveled way and roadsides as hereinafter described.  

 

4. ROADWAY 

Roadway means the area between the inside face of curbs or the area between the flow lines of paved 

gutters; otherwise, the entire width within the highway which is improved for vehicular use including 

improved shoulders and side slopes, if they exist. 

 

5. IMPROVED ROADSIDES 

Improved roadside is the area between the roadway, as defined under Section 4, and the right-of-way 

boundary lines, including curb and bicycle and pedestrian facilities. 

Curb relates to a timber, concrete, asphalt, or masonry structure separating or otherwise delineating the 

roadway from the remainder of the highway and shall include paved gutters. A bicycle and pedestrian facility 

applies to the paved or otherwise improved surface area between the face of curb or edge of roadway and 

right-of-way boundary, including sidewalks, shared use paths, and other facilities as described in the 

attached Administrative Policy A-28-04. Paved entrances and driveways are considered part of the improved 

roadside. 

 

6. UNIMPROVED ROADSIDES 

Unimproved roadsides relate to the area between the roadway and right-of-way boundary wherein curbs 

and pedestrian specific facilities do not exist. 

 

7. BRIDGES 

Bridges are structures that span more than 20 feet measured between abutments along the centerline of the 

street and multiple span structures where the individual spans are in excess of 10 feet measured from center- 

to-center of supports along the centerline of the street. All other cross-drainage structures shall be classified 

as culverts. 

 

8. TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES 

Traffic control devices include all signs, pavement markings, and highway illumination placed on or 

adjacent to the street or highway for the regulations, guidance, warning and aid of pedestrian and traffic 

movement thereon.  

 

9. FRONTAGE ROADS 

Frontage roads are roads constructed on either side of the highway to provide authorized road access to 

adjacent properties in lieu of access directly from the highway. 

 

10. ROUTINE MAINTENANCE 

Routine maintenance to be performed on the roadway or roadsides shall consist of such work as patching, 

spot sealing, crack sealing, snow plowing, snow removal, sanding, care of drainage, upkeep and repair of 

bridges, culverts, curbs, benches, bicycle and pedestrian facilities, street sweeping and cleaning, repair of 

damage and cleaning up after storms and traffic accidents, control of roadside vegetation, care of 

landscaped areas, planters, trees or other ornamental plantings, and upkeep and operation of traffic control 

devices, all in the manner as hereinafter specified. 



Page 3 of 11 
 

a. Roadway 

(1) Surface Repair: The patching of holes, depressed areas, spot sealing, undersealing, etc. 

(2) Crack Sealing: The cleaning, filling and sealing of cracks in pavement with sealing compounds. 

(3) Sweeping and Cleaning: The removal of dirt or litter normally coming onto the roadway from 

action of traffic or from natural causes, such as flood and storm debris. 

(4) Snow Removal: The removal of snow from the roadway by plowing, sweeping, and hauling and 

shall include applying sand and/or salt when required. The hauling away of snow need only apply 

on those highway sections where snow storage is limited or at such times when accumulations 

become greater than storage area capacity. 

(5) Utilities: Including manholes, boxes or other appurtenances shall be maintained by their owners. 

(6) Storm Sewers: Shall be kept clean and free from debris; traps and sumps cleaned as required 

after each storm. 

(7) Culverts: Shall be kept clean and free from debris; inlets and outlets shall be kept free of debris 

and growing grass or brush. 

b. Bridges 

(1) Structures shall be inspected in accordance with the national inspection standards of U.S. Code, 

Section 116(d), Title 23, administered by the State. Bridges designed to AASHTO H-20 or better 

standards must be inspected on a frequency not to exceed two years. Bridges that are posted for 

restricted weight limits and/or designed to AASHTO HS-15 or less will be inspected on an annual 

basis. Inspections are to be accomplished by a qualified inspector. The State's District Engineer 

shall be immediately notified of major defects. See current edition of AASHTO Manual for 

Maintenance Inspection of Bridges for inspector's qualifications, inspection reporting 

procedures, and structural analysis for load capacity of bridges. 

(2) For Structure Cosmetics, inside of the pedestrian underpass and on top of the pedestrian walks 

of the main structure shall be kept free of graffiti and debris. 

c. Improved Roadsides 

(1) Curbs: Shall be kept in repair by cleaning, patching, lifting, and aligning. 

(2) Bicycle/Pedestrian Facilities: Shall be maintained in a usable condition for their intended purpose. 

(3) Lawn or Grass Areas: Shall be kept mowed, watered, edges trimmed, and the watering operations 

shall not flood or sprinkle on the roadway. No plants, trees, or bushes will be allowed in the area 

between the roadway and shared use path within the highway right-of-way unless otherwise 

approved through the State permitting process 

(4) Benches and Planters: Shall be kept in repair by cleaning, patching, aligning, and painting. 

d. Unimproved Roadsides 

(1) Ditchings: Foreslopes, backslopes, and ditches shall be bladed and ditched regularly as required 

to keep as near as possible to the original typical cross section. 

(2) Cleaning: Foreslopes and backslopes shall be mowed as required. Trees and shrubs shall be kept 

trimmed, dead material removed and hazardous limbs pruned, waterways shall be kept free of 

debris. 



Page 4 of 11 
 

 
 

e. Traffic Control Devices 

Traffic control devices installed and maintained on the urban extensions of the State Highway System 

shall be in conformance with the recommendations and specifications of the current Manual on 

Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets and Highways as approved by the American Association 

of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) and as adopted by the Idaho Transportation 

Department. The maintenance to be performed on these items shall consist of furnishing all necessary 

labor, material, services, and equipment to install, replace, operate, and/or repair in accordance with 

this agreement or as otherwise permitted 

All traffic control devices installed inside the full control of access limits of the Highway System shall 

be the responsibility of the State. 

(1) Route Guide Signing: This includes all official designation guide signs at junctions of the urban 

extensions of the State Highway System, all entering community signs and all U.S. or State 

Highway System route markers necessary to properly identify and keep the motorist sure of the 

routes. 

(2) Other Guide Signs: This includes all other guide signs of an informational nature identifying 

streets, city parks, landmarks, and items of geographical or cultural interest that the community 

desires to sign. 

(3) Warning Signs: These will include all signs used to indicate conditions that are actually or 

potentially hazardous to users of the highway or street. 

(4) Speed Signs: These will include all regulatory signs to indicate speed limits that have been 

designated in accordance with statutory provisions. 

(5) Other Regulatory Signs: These will include all regulatory signs, other than the speed sign and 

lane control sign which are used to indicate the required method of traffic movement or use of 

the public highway or street. 

(6) Highway Lighting: This includes all fixed illumination of the roadway or sidewalks for purposes 

of providing better visibility of persons, vehicles or roadway features. All highway lighting shall 

be installed and maintained in accordance with current policies of the State. Maintenance shall 

include all upkeep of supports, interconnecting service, electrical energy costs, cleaning, lamp 

renewal, and associated labor and material costs required to maintain the lighting system in 

continuous nighttime operation. 

(7) Lane-Line Markings: These will include those lines dividing the roadway between traffic moving 

in opposite directions, lane-lines separating two or more lanes of traffic moving in the same 

direction, painted channelization, pavement edge markings, and no passing barrier lines where 

required. 

(8) Other Pavement Markings: These include all stop lines, crosswalk lines, parking space limits and 

word and symbol marking set into or applied upon the pavement surface or curbing or objects 

within or adjacent to the roadway for the purpose of regulating or warning traffic. 

 

11. ENCROACHMENT PERMITS 

If the State delegates authority to issue encroachment permits to the City, the authority shall pertain to all 

parts of the highway or street throughout the particular length indicated under Section 14 of this agreement. 

Authority to issue encroachment permits shall not be assigned to the City unless they have adequate 

ordinances governing the encroachments together with an administrative organization and procedure 

capable of enforcing the ordinances. 



Page 5 of 11 
 

 
 

Permits shall be issued on a form provided by the State and the City will furnish a copy of each permit to 

the State. The City agrees to follow current policies of the State regarding encroachment unless the City, 

by ordinance or other regulation, imposes more restrictive regulations as stated below. Prior approval of the 

State shall be secured before any permit is issued for the original installation of any utility line, driveway or 

other permanent encroachment within the highway right-of-way. 

If the City, by ordinance or other regulation, imposes more restrictive regulations and requirements 

regarding signs, marquees and/or driveways than above set forth or as provided in current State policies, 

nothing in these provisions shall be construed to prevent the City from enforcing such restrictive regulations 

in the granting or refusing of permits with respect to any State Highway. Where authority to issue 

encroachment permits is retained by the State, all local ordinances which are more restrictive than State 

policy will be observed. When authority to issue Encroachment permits is retained by the State, approval 

of the City will be secured prior to the issuance of a permit. State permit forms will be used and a copy will 

be forwarded to the City for its record. 

The City or State shall comply with its usual policy with respect to collecting costs from permittees in such 

cases as fees or charges are made by the City or State for encroachment work on streets or highways. 

The City is exempt from encroachment permit fees from the State. As well, the State is exempt from 

encroachment permit fees from the City. 

No signs, billboards or structures other than those authorized and installed by the State or the City as 

necessary for the regulating, warning, and guiding of traffic shall be permitted within or to overhang the 

right-of-way of any State Highway, except in accordance with these provisions: 

a. Signs or marquees extending over the sidewalk and right-of-way may be installed on a permitted basis in business 

districts only, subject to the following restrictions: 

• No sign or marquee shall be permitted to project over the roadway nor to extend beyond a vertical line 

located 18 inches from the inside face of the curb away from the roadway. 

• Signs extending over the sidewalk area shall have no part thereof less than 12 feet above sidewalk or ground 

level. Marquees extending over the sidewalk area shall have no part thereof less than eight feet above 

sidewalk or ground level. 

b. Displays or signs overhanging the right-of-way may be authorized on a permit basis only outside of business 

districts when the display is placed flat against and supported by the building and providing it does not extend 

more than 12 inches into the right-of-way. 

(1) Displays or signs already permitted into the State right-of-way and not impacted by the current project 

will be allowed to remain under their current permit. 

c. All signs and marquees shall conform to the city building and/or sign code excepting that minimum clearance 

requirements as herein specified must be complied with. 

They shall at all times be maintained in a good appearing and structurally safe condition. Any existing sign or 

marquee suspended or projected over any portion of State Highway right-of-way, which constitutes a hazard, 

shall be immediately repaired or removed. 

d. Signs or displays will not be permitted which resemble, hide, or because of their color, interfere with the 

effectiveness of traffic signals and other traffic control devices. Illuminated signs or displays containing red, 

yellow, or green lights will not be permitted to overhang the right-of-way. 

e. Temporary municipal decorations may be installed and suspended over the State Highway travel lanes on a permit 

basis only. They shall not be permitted in locations that interfere with the visibility and effectiveness of traffic 

control devices. 

It is understood that none of the provisions listed above (a. to e. inclusive) will be in conflict the 

Beautification of Highways Act of 1966, Idaho Code, Section 40, Chapter 28. 



Page 6 of 11 
 

f. Use of state highway right-of-way for benches, planters, and trees is subject to the following conditions: 

• Benches, planters, and trees must be at least 18 inches from the face of the curb. When benches, planters, 

and trees are placed on sidewalks, there must be a four-foot open space for pedestrians and bicyclists 

measured at a right angle from the edge of the sidewalk, or as an alternative, spacing that meets city-approved 

standards. All other items shall be allowed through the State permitting process. 

• Benches, planters, and trees should not obstruct crosswalks or wheelchair ramps, or force pedestrians into 

the street by their placement. 

• Benches, planters, and trees should not be placed so as to impede the sight distance of vehicles using the 

highway. 

• Benches, planters, and trees shall not bear markings or signs that resemble official traffic signs. 

• Cities allowing benches, planters, and trees on state highway right-of-way agree to indemnify, defend 

regardless of outcome, and hold harmless, ITD from all accidents or occurrences resulting in damage to 

property, injury, or loss of life related to bench placement on highway right-of-way within the city. 

 

12. TRANSPORTATION PERMITS 

Transportation permits will be required on State Highways for all vehicles and their loads that exceed legal 

limitations. If authority to issue transportation permits is delegated to the City, such authority shall pertain 

only to travel that originates and terminates within the City corporate limits. 

 

13. ROUTE DESCRIPTION 
 

Route No. Milepost Length Miles Description of Routing 

SH-41 
0.446 -  

3.450 
3.004 

Main Route between Post Falls and 
Rathdrum 

*City Streets 

Within State 

Right-of-way 

limits 

 
 

Various 

 
 

Various 
Wyoming Ave., Lancaster Rd., Nagel 

Rd., California St., Boekel Rd., OK 

Corral (Future), Shared use path 

*This includes portions of City streets that intersect SH-41 or drainage facilities associated with them that 

will be constructed as part of this project. 

 

14. DELEGATION OF MAINTENANCE 

The maintenance work to be performed by the City or State shall conform to the provisions hereof and shall 

include those operations as hereinafter indicated. 

 

MAINTENANCE FUNCTION AGENCY TO PERFORM WORK 

 
ROADWAY 

SH-41 
*City Streets Within 

State Right-of-way limits 

1. Surface Repair State  City  

2. Crack Sealing State  City  

3. Sweeping and Cleaning State  City  

4. Snow Removal State  City  

5. Utilities City/Utility Companies  City/Utility Companies  

6. Culverts State  City  

7. Storm Sewers State/City  City  



Page 7 of 11 
 

 

MAINTENANCE FUNCTION AGENCY TO PERFORM WORK 

 

BRIDGES 

SH-41 
*City Streets Within 

State Right-of-way limits 

1. Main Structure State  N/A  

2. Structure of the Pedestrian Walks on the Main 
Structure State  City  
3. Structure of the Pedestrian Underpass at the Main 
Structure State  City  
4. Cosmetics of the Pedestrian Underpass at the Main 
Structure City  City  
5. Cosmetics of the Pedestrian Walks at the Main 
Structure City  City  

IMPROVED ROADSIDES   

1. Curbs State  City  

2. Sidewalk City  City  

3. Lawn or Grass Areas City  City  

4. Trees and Planting City (By Permit) City  

5. Medians City  City  

6. Benches and Planters City  City  

UNIMPROVED ROADSIDES   

1. Ditching State  City  

2. Cleaning State  City  

3. Weed Eradication State  City  

TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES   

1. Route Guide Signs State  City  

2. Other Guide Signs State  City  

3. Warning Signs State  City  

4. Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacon (RRFB) N/A  N/A  

5. Speed Signs State  City  

6. Other Regulatory Signs State  City  

7. Highway Lighting/Illumination City  City  

8. Traffic Signals 

9. Lane-Line Markings State  City  

10. Other Pavement Markings   

Parking Space Limits N/A  City  

Crosswalks State  City  

Stop Bars State  City  

School Crossing State  City  

Lane Control State  City  

ISSUE PERMITS ENCROACHMENTS State  City  

ISSUE PERMITS TRANSPORTATION State  City  

* The State’s application of wildland grass seed will be considered “Unimproved” Roadside. If the City causes roadside areas to 

be improved to lawn or grass areas, maintenance of these areas will be the responsibility of the City. 

** Storm Sewers that are on private property and City right-of-way will be maintained by the City. Any additional peak load to the 

storm water system in the Project Section due to development will only be allowed with ITD and City approval. 

***Future bus and transit maintenance will be covered in future agreements or in an addendum to this agreement. 
 

 



Page 8 of 11 
 

15. SUBSEQUENT IMPROVEMENTS 

When a highway section or portion thereof is improved to urban standards, i.e., with curbs, sidewalks, etc., 

the delegation of maintenance shall automatically change to conform to the provisions as provided for 

similar sections under this agreement. 

 

 

16. FINANCING 

ITD and the City shall bear all costs of maintenance obligations assigned to them under this Memorandum 

of Understanding. 

 

17. LIMITATIONS 

 

Nothing in this Memorandum of Understanding between ITD and the City shall be construed as limiting 

or expanding the statutory or regulatory responsibilities of any involved individual in performing functions 

granted to them by law; or as requiring either entity to expend any sum in excess of its respective 

appropriation. Each and every provision of this Memorandum is subject to the laws and regulations of the 

state of Idaho and of the United States. 

 

Nothing in this Memorandum of Understanding shall be construed as expanding the liability of either party. 

In the event of a liability claim, each party shall defend their own interests. Neither party shall be required to 

provide indemnification of the other party. 

 

18. EFFECTIVE DATE: 

This Memorandum of Understanding shall become effective upon signature of the Director of ITD or 

delegate and the signing authority of the City of Rathdrum, whichever is most recent, and shall remain in 

full force and effect until amended or terminated. 

 

19. METHOD OF TERMINATION: 

This Memorandum of Understanding shall remain in force unless formally terminated by  mutual agreement 

of each party after thirty (30) days written notice to other party. 

 

20. AMENDMENTS: 

Amendments to this Memorandum shall become effective upon mutual agreement and written approval by 

the Director of ITD or delegate and the signing authority of the City of Rathdrum. 

 

21. SIGNATURES: 

 
IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT 

 

By    

Director or Delegate 

 
 

THE CITY OF RATHDRUM 

 

By    

Date    

 

 

 

 

 

 
Date     

 

(Title)    



Page 9 of 11 

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY A-28-04 

 

Page 1 of 3 
 

BICYCLE/PEDESTRIAN FACILITIES 

 

The Idaho Transportation Department is committed to achieving a safe, effective, and balanced multimodal 

transportation system that includes accommodations for bicyclists, pedestrians, and pedestrians with disabilities, 

along with motorized transportation modes. This commitment includes developing the transportation 

infrastructure to improve conditions for bicycling and walking by integrating provisions for bicycles and 

pedestrians into new construction and reconstruction highway projects through design features appropriate for 

the context and function of the transportation facility. The design and construction of facilities shall anticipate 

likely future demand for bicycling and pedestrian facilities, and not preclude the provision of future 

improvements. 

 

Definitions 

A “bike/bicycle lane” is a portion of a roadway that has been designated with signing and pavement markings 

for the preferential or exclusive use of bicyclists. 

A “shared use path” is a multiuse facility for use by pedestrians and/or bicyclists that is physically separated 

from motorized vehicular traffic by an open space or barrier, and is within either the highway right-of-way or an 

independent right-of-way. 

A “sidewalk” is that portion of a roadway that is intended for pedestrian use, and lies between the curb lines or 

the lateral lines of the travel way and the adjacent property lines. 

An “Accommodation” is any facility, design feature, operational change, or maintenance activity that improves 

the environment in which bicyclists and pedestrians travel. 

 

Facilities 

Due consideration shall be given to bicycle and pedestrian needs in the design of new transportation facilities. 

The following items shall be considered when determining the possible inclusion of bicycle or pedestrian 

facilities within a project. 

• The project’s scope 

• Relevant planning documents, such as a corridor plan, local transportation plan, local pedestrian/bicycle 

policy, or facilities plan 

• Limitations due to historic structures, environmental constraints, or other unique project features 

• Context-sensitive issues, such as school crossings, transit stops, etc. 

• Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) requirements 

• Discussions with local governments regarding any special circumstances, such as high-use recreation 

traffic generators outside of a city limit (schools, churches, business parks, etc.). 



Page 10 of 11 

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY A-28-04 

 

Page 2 of 3 

 

The above list does not represent all possible guidance to be considered when making a determination. 

When it has been determined that a bicycle or pedestrian facility should be included within the project, 

accommodations generally include: 

• Inside city limits - consideration of sidewalks and widened outside travel lanes or bicycle lanes. 

• Outside city limits - the use of roadway shoulders. 

All consideration given to bicycle and pedestrian facilities shall be documented in the project’s Concept Report. 

 

Project Costs 

When the Concept Report requires the construction of bicycle and/or pedestrian facilities for projects on the 

State highway system, all costs associated with the construction shall be distributed in accordance with 

Administrative Policy A-19-01, FINANCING CONSTRUCTION OF STATE HIGHWAYS IN CITIES. Off- 

system and local bicycle and/or pedestrian facilities shall be the responsibility of the local entity, unless 

otherwise specified in a state/local agreement executed prior to construction. 

 

Maintenance 

The Department is responsible for costs associated with the maintenance of bicycle lanes on the State highway 

system, unless otherwise specified in a state/local maintenance agreement. 

Routine maintenance of sidewalks and separated pathways located on highway right-of-way shall be the 

responsibility of the appropriate local agency through an agreement completed prior to construction. At its 

discretion, the local agency may accomplish certain maintenance activities through organized groups or entities 

that it authorizes. However, the maintenance responsibility remains with the local government agency. 

 

Projects Proposed by Others 

Due to the localized nature of non-motorized trips, the Department encourages local units of government to 

participate in planning and developing infrastructure that will support walking and bicycling. 

The Department supports local governments by considering requests to make highway right-of-way available 

for non-motorized facilities. Future highway expansion or interference with the operational characteristics of 

the highway may preclude ITD from approving such requests. 

Prior to giving approval for a facility, the Department may require the requesting agency to provide detailed 

analysis of the proposed facility’s impacts to the highway in order to determine the acceptability of the facility. 

 

When appropriate, the Department shall negotiate the use of state highway right-of-way only with local 

governments or other public agencies, not with private groups or organizations. This is to insure that project 

development, funding, and maintenance issues can be coordinated by an agency that can make a long-term 

written agreement with ITD. Private groups or organizations may participate as part of the planning process, 

but only local governments shall be responsible for the facility’s planning, construction, and maintenance. 

 

 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY A-28-04 

Page 3 of 3 



Page 11 of  11 
 

 

 

 
 

  Signed  Date:  August 05, 2009  

L. Scott Stokes, P.E. 

Acting Director 

 

This Policy is based on: 

 Title 23, USC Section 135 
 SAFETEA-LU Section 6001 
 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1983, as amended, 29 USC 792 
 Title II, Americans with Disability Act 
 Board Policy B-09-08, BICYCLE/PEDESTRIAN FACILITIES 
 Board Policy B-13-03, ENVIRONMENTAL STEWARDSHIP 

Department-wide supervision and coordination assigned to: 
 Division of Public Transportation Administrator 

Direction for activity and results assigned to: 
 Bicycle/Pedestrian Coordinator 

Direction for standards assigned to: 
 Geometrics Engineer 

Department procedures contained in: 
 This policy 
 Statewide Bicycle Plan 
 ITD Design Manual 

Former date of A-09-08: 
7/1/93 (Formerly numbered A-09-08, which replaced A-09-04, TRAVELWAYS FOR NON-MOTORIZED 

TRANSPORTATION) 

Cross-reference to related Administrative policies: 

 A-05-16, MAINTENANCE OF STATE HIGHWAYS 
 A-11-01, TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
 A-19-01, FINANCING CONSTRUCTION OF STATE HIGHWAYS IN CITIES 



r:\public works\projects - capital improvements\roads & intersections\lancaster & meyer intersection\memo kj-cc lancaster-meyer - 3.5.2020.docx 

Memo 
To:   Rathdrum City Council 

From:  Kevin Jump 

CC:   

Date:  March 5, 2020 

Re:  Intersection Improvements at Lancaster Road & Meyer Road 

 

There is a commercial development project proposed on the southeast corner of 
Lancaster Road and Meyer Road.  Through various annexations and platting 
processes, the City of Rathdrum has obtained/reserved public right-of-way from all 4 
quadrants of the intersection.  The obtained right-of-way was based upon a 
superimposed dual-lane roundabout footprint. 

With the public right-of-way having already been obtained, recent accident history and 
a commercial development project being proposed at the southeast corner, we believe 
that it is now appropriate to make major intersection improvements.  Further, we are 
considering that the commercial development contractor completes the Lancaster-
Meyer intersection improvements with reimbursement from the City of Rathdrum’s 
Traffic Circulation Impact Fee Fund.  We believe that there is mutual benefit in having 
these intersection improvements completed simultaneously with the commercial 
development project.  Further, we believe that there is significant benefit with utilizing 
the same engineering consultant to design both the intersection improvements and the 
nearby/adjoining site development project (SE Corner). 

For your consideration, I’m herein attaching a Scope of Work and Work Order for 
engineering design services.  I’m herein seeking approval by the Rathdrum City 
Council to advance this work and grant authorization to Mayor Holmes for executing 
the Work Order. 

 

 

 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
8047 W. Main Street 
Rathdrum, ID  83858 

P  208.687.2700 
F  208.687.1377 



19-068 

 

 

126 E. Poplar Avenue · Coeur d’Alene, Idaho 83814 · tel: 208.676.0230 · www.lakecityengineering.com 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

Roundabout Design - Lancaster & Meyer  
Estimated Costs 

 
1. Topographic Survey        

- Research existing utilities (size, location, depth, etc…) based on Record 
Drawings 

- Call U-Dig hotline for locates prior to field work 
- Locate and tie existing features, structures on property 
- Download points and prepare CAD Basemap 
 

2. Right-of-Way Acquisition      
- Assess R/W acquisition needs 
- Perform Boundary / Right-of-Way Survey as required 
- Prepare Land Descriptions for R/W acquisitions from impacted parcels 
- Stake new footprint of R/W to indicate the to-be-acquired right-of-way 

to surrounding property owners 
- Coordinate with surrounding property owners as required 
- Assist City with negotiations as needed 

 
3. Utility Relocation 

- Assess existing utilities, locations, sizes, etc. 
- Determine utility conflicts, or utilities that need to be relocated 
- Coordinate with impacted utility company 
- Review utility relocation agreements, etc. 

 
4. Construction Drawings & Specifications       

- Meetings with City staff and jurisdictional agencies to discuss project 
concepts. Refine project layouts based on comments and work with 
agencies towards approvals / entitlements 

- Create CAD Basemap drawing and import preliminary linework/design 
from City 

- Verify vehicle turning movements and prepare dimensional analysis. 
- Prepare Construction Drawings & Specifications including Grading Plan, 

Stormwater Calculations, Utility Plan, Lighting Plan, Signage & Striping 
Plan, and Project Details & Specifications 

- Review plans with City and explore value engineering options 
- Submit Plans to City and affected agencies for review and/or approval 
- Coordinate with agencies on plan comments as required 
- Make revisions to plans as required by jurisdictional agencies 
- Obtain Construction Drawing approval 
- QA / QC and coordinate with City 

  



19-068 

 

 

126 E. Poplar Avenue · Coeur d’Alene, Idaho 83814 · tel: 208.676.0230 · www.lakecityengineering.com 

 
5. Bid Assistance 

- Provide City assistance in bidding of project as necessary 
 
 

TOTAL ESTIMATED PROJECT COST: $57,750.00 
 

 
EXCLUSIONS 
- Construction Staking (except as noted in Section 2) 
- Construction Management 
- Title, application & agency fees 
- Reproduction costs 



126 E. Poplar Avenue · Coeur d’Alene, Idaho 83814 · tel: 208.676.0230 · www.lakecityengineering.com 

WORK ORDER 
             

February 18, 2020 
PROJECT NAME: Roundabout Design - Lancaster & Meyer 

LCE JOB #: 19-068 

LOCATION:  Rathdrum, Idaho 

PARCEL # / AIN: N/A 

 
BILLING / CONTACT INFORMATION: 

CONTACT PERSON: Kevin Jump, PE 

  COMPANY: City of Rathdrum 

 ADDRESS:  8047 West Main Street 

Rathdrum, ID  83858 

 

                

 BUS PHONE:  (208) 687-0261    CELL PHONE:        

 EMAIL:    kevin@rathdrum.org

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION / SCOPE: 
See attached Scope of Services. Scope does not include construction staking or 

construction management services, application/agency fees or reproduction costs. 

Engineer will be available for bidding assistance if needed. 

 

 
ESTIMATED COST:   $ 57,750.00          T&M      LUMP SUM 

REQUIRED DEPOSIT:  $  0.00 

 

PREPARED BY:     DATE:  ____2/17/2020_ ____ 

ACCEPTED BY:     DATE:  _______________ 



r:\public works\app review-plats+site plans\long plats\corbin crossing south\memo kj-cc deadwood r-w donation - 3.5.2020.docx 

Memo 
To:   Rathdrum City Council 

From:  Kevin Jump 

CC:   

Date:  March 5, 2020 

Re:  Acceptance of Public Right-of-Way for Deadwood Street 

 

The attached legal description and conveyance documents serve as a right-of-way 
replacement for the recently-vacated right-of-way in/adjoining the Corbin Crossing 
South development. 

For your consideration, I’m herein seeking approval by the Rathdrum City Council to 
accept this public right-of-way and authorize Mayor Holmes to execute the conveyance 
documents. 

 

 

 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
8047 W. Main Street 
Rathdrum, ID  83858 

P  208.687.2700 
F  208.687.1377 



















Westwood Pines Prelim Plat Staff_CC Final.doc   1 

 

 

City of Rathdrum 

City Council 
  

Staff Report –Preliminary Long Plat 
 

 

To: Rathdrum City Council 

From: City of Rathdrum Planning and Zoning Administrator 

Date of Report: March 4, 2020 

Subject: Westwood Pines Preliminary Long Plat (Major Subdivision)  

Docket Number: LP 2020-01 

Property Address: NNA W Highway 53 / NNA N Meyer Road 

Applicant / Owner: Viking Construction, Inc.    Viking Construction, Inc. 

2605 W Hayden Avenue    19425 E Broadway Avenue 

Hayden, ID 83835    Spokane Valley, WA 99016 

Representative:    Ray Kimball 

Whipple Consulting Engineers 

21 S. Pines Road 

Spokane Valley, WA 99206 

Date of Meeting: March 11, 2020 

I. PROJECT INFORMATION 

Request:  The applicant is seeking approval of a preliminary long plat (major subdivision) to be known as 

Westwood Pines, consisting of 113 lots on approximately 50 acres of land.  

The primary purpose of the plat is to create a residential neighborhood consisting of 110 residential lots 

within the Residential R-2S (low/medium density residential) zone district, ranging in size from 7,540 SF to 

21,143 SF in area - with the average lot size being 8,995 SF. The required minimum lot size is 7,500 SF in 

this zone. The project is to be developed in phases, subject to market conditions, with public improvements 

anticipated to be started in spring of 2020. 

The anticipated project phasing consists of: 

1. Westwood Pines original plat will consist of 50 residential lots, the commercial C-2 and multifamily 

residential R-3 lots, and well lot. Subdivision infrastructure is anticipated to be completed by 

November 2020 with the first home within the subdivision to be completed by July 2021(subject to 

permitting). The applicant anticipates build-out of 2.67 homes per month, or 32 homes per year. 

2. Westwood Pines 1st Addition plat will consist of 32 residential lots. Fencing along the northern 

boundary of the phase will be provided as discussed herein. 

3. Westwood Pines 2nd Addition plat will consist of the remaining 28 residential lots. Fencing along the 

northern boundary of the phase will be provided as discussed herein. 

Also included in the proposed plat are two (2) lots to be created within the Commercial C-2 (highway/service 

 



Westwood Pines Prelim Plat Staff_CC Final.doc   2 

 

 

commercial) zone district and one (1) lot located within the Residential R-3 (multifamily residential) zone 

districts of approximately 8.8 acres. Within the commercial zone one lot of approximately 11,025 SF is to be 

dedicated to the City of Rathdrum for the purpose of well placement, and the remaining approximately 10.8-

acres is a commercial lot. 

There are no proposals to develop the R-3 and C-2 lots at this time. The proposed lot configuration is for the 

purpose of providing separation of zone districts as established during the annexation process by lot lines. 

Further subdivision within the R-3 and C-2 districts may be possible in the future in compliance with City 

Code. 

This plat will include dedication of right-of-way and improvements for extension of Meyer Road to the 

northern boundary of the subdivision and other 

street and sidewalks to serve the development 

(internal and secondary access from Highway 

53) in accordance with City standards. Water, 

sewer, and other utilities will be extended to 

serve the development and stormwater will be 

collected in street-side swales. A new public lift 

station to be located within the northern portion 

of the R-3 zoned parcel, temporary sewer force 

main which will run east through the City 

Cemetery and connecting to an existing gravity 

main in Timberline Street, and permanent 

gravity sewer for future connection within 

proposed Cloverdale Street will be constructed 

prior to final Westwood Pines original plat. 

A six-foot tall, sight obscuring fence is to be 

placed along the northern boundary of the subdivision to create separation from the properties to the north 

located within Kootenai County and zoned Rural. 

The Applicant will be required to construct public infrastructure (roads, sidewalks, utility extensions, etc.) 

before development of individual lots within the subdivision. A Development Agreement pursuant to RCC 

11-12 and 11-5-4-F is required to address frontage and right of way improvements, including but not limited 

to utilities, streets, street trees, stormwater, street lighting and other requirements both at the perimeter and 

interior to the development. Construction on the lots will be subject to individual building permits 

demonstrating compliance with zoning and development standards as found within Rathdrum City Code at 

the time of such development.  

Please note that phasing / platting is dependent on market conditions and plats may be combined. 

Site Information / Location of Project:  The proposed project is generally located at the northeasterly 

corner of the intersection of Meyer Road and Highway 53 to the north and west of the Lion’s Club and 

baseball fields.  

The property is currently vacant / undeveloped. 

The Kootenai County Assessors Tax Parcel Numbers are R-0000-029-6200 and R-0000-029-6500. The legal 

description is by meets and bounds within the South half of the Southwest Quarter of Section 29, Township 

52 North, Range 4 West, Boise Meridian, as found within the Title Report submitted with the application. 

Zoning:  The property was annexed into the City per Ordinance 519 on January 11, 2011 zoned R-2S 

(residential, single family, low/medium-density), R-3 (residential, high density (multi-family)) and C-2 

(highway/service commercial) and is subject to the Annexation Agreement recorded with the Kootenai 



Westwood Pines Prelim Plat Staff_CC Final.doc   3 

 

 

County Recorder on February 1, 2011 (attached hereto in Exhibit G). 

Comprehensive Plan Designation:  The Future Land Use Map identifies the site as Transformational. 

Residential and Commercial uses are compatible with this designation. 

II. PROJECT REVIEW   

City planning and public works staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission have reviewed the proposed 

subdivision. This report reflects an overview of the proposed preliminary subdivision based on the submitted 

application materials, public hearing for the proposal, comments received, the record from the Annexation 

request and hearings from 2011, the Planning and Zoning Commission’s recommendation, and other 

information available at the time of this report. The project is subject to modification prior to final action of 

the Council. 

Comprehensive Plan Consistency Analysis: 

The proposed development is generally consistent with and implements several goals and policies of the 

City’s Comprehensive Plan. The relevant goals and policies established within the Rathdrum Comprehensive 

Plan that pertain to the proposed development are listed in Exhibit F, attached hereto. Included for each 

Comprehensive Plan element is an analysis of the proposed project’s consistency. 

Rathdrum City Code:  

Several titles of the Rathdrum City Code (RCC) provide regulations for the development and operation of the 

proposed project. Those portions of the RCC that pertain to the proposed project are described in Exhibit E, 

attached hereto. Included for each requirement is an analysis of the proposed project’s conformance with that 

requirement.  

Public Hearing / Public Comments: 

The Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing for this proposal on January 15, 2020 (see 

process information within Exhibit E, §12-3-1-6 attached hereto). Minutes from the hearing are attached 

within Exhibit H. 

During the hearing City staff presented a brief report regarding the proposal, followed by the applicant’s 

testimony and public testimony. The following public testimony was received:  

1. Jim Dugan, 6302 W Mallory Road, Rathdrum, ID 83858 

Spoke Neutrally - Mr. Dugan lives just north of the project and is concerned about his livestock and 

questioned whether or not the developer will install a fence between the project and rural property to 

the north. He also commented that he uses Meyer Road for his main access and is concerned about 

the extra traffic this subdivision will generate. 

2. John Leitzke, 5943 W Highway 53, Rathdrum, ID 83858 

Spoke Neutrally - Mr. Leitzke would like to see fencing installed and questioned just where the 

sewer lift station was going to be installed since he lives directly east of this subdivision.   

3. Sally Williams, 5922 W Mallory Road, Rathdrum, ID 83858 

Spoke Neutrally - Mrs. Williams stated that she also lives just north of this project and would like to 

see a fence installed. 

4. Richard Williams, 5922 W Mallory Road, Rathdrum, ID 83858 

Spoke Neutrally - Mr. Williams lives just north of this proposed subdivision and is concerned about 

the survey being done for this project and how will affect his property and is worried about the safety 

of his horses. 

The applicant’s representative, Ray Kimball of Whipple Consulting Engineers, Inc., provided rebuttal stating 



Westwood Pines Prelim Plat Staff_CC Final.doc   4 

 

 

that fencing has not been discussed by the developer, but they feel that most homeowners would put up their 

own fencing. Also, the developer has an agreement with the Lion’s Club to provide their small RV park 

along Meyer Road with sewer stubs for each RV. 

Staff clarified that any agreement with the Lion’s Club by Viking is a private agreement to which the City is 

not a party and that RVs shall not be connected to the City’s sewer system without City approval. 

During deliberations the Commission requested more information from the applicant in relation to traffic at the 

intersection of State Highway 53 and Meyer Road and fencing and therefor continued deliberations to the next 

regular Planning and Zoning Commission meeting to be held on February 19, 2020. 

Following continuation of the hearing, staff performed a review of the archived audio recording of the City 

Council hearing for the annexation of the property held on October 12, 2010. The following pertinent 

information in relation to the Commission’s request for more information was found within the recording: 

1. At approximately minute 22:00 Mr. Scott Krajack, representative for Viking,  begins his public 

testimony and states on the record that all of the concerns which came up during the previous 

hearings for the proposal had been addressed – including the Lion’s Club property being included in 

the annexation, the interim and permanent sewer infrastructure being installed up front so that the 

interim infrastructure could be removed once not needed, and the relationship with the neighbors to 

the north. He stated that he personally met with all of the adjoining property owners to the north and 

had walked the property with several of them and “at this point we have agreed to do some sort of 

sight obscuring fencing along that property line. My intention was to bring back the actual nature of 

that fence at the development which of course we have to come back to you for. So it has an 

agreement on, you know, how high, what type, things like that at that time. We also have agreed or, 

or I’ve I’ve agreed, to provide a buffer on our north property line, um, so that, so that this fencing 

would actually stay away from the property line.”… “At this point our intent is a minimum of a three 

foot buffer. It might be more. Once we actually get to development we’ll do a boundary line survey 

so at that point we’ll come back with the relationship between existing fences and property line. It 

might even be more than three feet if we had encroachments and things like that. The plan was to 

bring that all back at development.” 

2. At approximately minute 27:00 City Planner, Chris Rife, read into the record all of the recommended 

conditions of approval which were in the staff report. These included the 6 staff recommended 

conditions (a through f below) and the two P&Z recommended conditions (g and h below) as 

follows: 

a. Meyer Road Right of Way: Forty (40) foot of right-of-way east from the centerline of Meyer 

Road adjacent to the subject property be dedicated to the City and included in the annexation. 

Also annex twenty five foot of the existing County right-of way west from the centerline of 

Meyer Road.  

b. Highway 53 Access: Vehicular access from Highway 53 shall be limited to no more than two 

points of access to service future residential and commercial development in the subject 

property Such access shall meet the standards, goals and policies of the Transportation Plan 

and as approved by the Idaho Transportation Department and the City. Corridor management 

is essential no matter what land use might be approved. 

c. Sewer Service: Any proposed interim sewer plan shall be reviewed and approved by the City 

engineer and subsequently adopted by City Council as an amendment to the City’s Sewer 

Master Plan, if a provisional sewer arrangement is allowed. Any consideration of a 

provisional sewer arrangement would also need to assess how ultimate sewer plans would be 

funded and implemented. 



Westwood Pines Prelim Plat Staff_CC Final.doc   5 

 

 

d. Frontage and Street Improvements: Standard frontage improvements shall be designed and 

constructed when future subdivision and/or commercial site development processes are 

undertaken. The owner of the subject property north of Lions Park shall be responsible for 

right-of-way improvements along Meyer road from the northerly extent of the subject 

property to Highway 53, assuring appropriate roadway and walkway improvements are 

completed. No discontinuous improvements will be accepted. 

e. Public Transit: Off highway bus stop areas shall be provided when the subject property is 

developed to assure future accessibility by public transit and school buses. Such areas shall 

be designed to provide safe and convenient staffing areas for riders so as not to conflict with 

vehicular and pedestrian traffic. 

f. Well Lot: A well lot and necessary easements and rights-of-way in the Viking property will 

be dedicated to the City, if found appropriate, during the development review and platting 

process. 

g. A buffer to the north along the property line include a fence that is not see-through or chain 

link, but some sort of vinyl and some sort of appropriate landscape boundary on the Viking 

side of the fence that will be approved by City staff, and 

h. If City staff for any reason recommends a traffic study, Viking would then perform and 

provide such. 

3. At approximately 49:30 Mr. Scott Krajack begins his rebuttal of public comment during which he 

states (at approximately minute 52:00) “we did offer, if it’s required by City staff, we will be willing 

to pay for a traffic impact analysis.” 

4. At approximately minute 55:30 Councilor Laws expresses her willingness to consider approval of the 

annexation in part based on the developer meeting with the property owners and working with them.  

5. At approximately minute 1:05:30 Councilor Worthen makes a motion to approve the annexation. 

Approval by the Council included consideration of the staff report and evidence presented at the 

hearing. 

After discussion of these findings with the applicant, staff agreed to accept a level of service analysis as well 

as projected timing of their construction in relation to the Highway 53 / Meyer Road intersection 

improvements in lieu of the full traffic impact analysis at this time. This was supported by the City Engineer 

/ Public Works Director. The applicant submitted a Level of Service Analysis Memo by Whipple Consulting 

Engineers, Inc. dated February 7, 2020. Based on the analysis it is anticipated that the level of service for the 

existing intersection will not be degraded until build-out of over 60 residential lots. The City has initiated a 

project for improvements at the intersection, to be paid for by Traffic Impact Fees as incorporated in the 

City’s Capital Facilities Plan, which is anticipated to be completed by mid-2022. Please see the Memo by 

City Engineer, Kevin Jump, attached within Exhibit B-7. Staff has included recommended conditions of 

approval to address project timing and traffic impacts, including the Idaho Transportation Department’s 

(ITD) requirement to perform a traffic impact analysis prior to connection of any new access points to 

Highway 53.  

The applicant also submitted a revised plan showing a six-foot high sight obscuring fence on the north 

property line “to be installed south of the property line so as to ensure that the owner to the north has the 

ability to construct a second livestock fence if needed.” Staff has also recommended a condition of approval 

to address the applicant’s previous commitment to provide a three-foot buffer. 



Westwood Pines Prelim Plat Staff_CC Final.doc   6 

 

 

III. RECOMMENDATION 

In its review, the Planning and Zoning Commission determined the proposed subdivision conforms to the general 

purpose of the Comprehensive Plan and will include appropriate provisions for streets, drainage and other public 

ways, open space, water supplies, sewage disposal, fire protection and other appropriate public and private 

improvements upon infrastructure build-out. The City of Rathdrum Planning and Zoning Commission 

recommends APPROVAL of the Westwood Pines Preliminary Long Plat subject to the following conditions: 

Staff recommends the following findings of fact and conclusions of law for any approval of the proposed 

subdivision: 

Conditions of Approval: 

1. Issuance of building permitting within the subdivision, inclusive of all zone districts, will be limited 

to 60 dwelling units until capital improvements are completed for the SH53-Meyer Road 

intersection. 

2. Any non-residential development within the subdivision, inclusive of all zone districts, will require a 

new, updated traffic LOS analysis and conformance with City requirements derived therefrom, as 

applicable. 

3. A Traffic Impact Analysis shall be completed per the requirements of Idaho Transportation 

Department (ITD) prior to connection of Cloverdale Street access to SH53. Such Traffic Impact 

Analysis shall be submitted to the City as well as any response and/or requirements from ITD. The 

developer shall be responsible for providing any improvements identified as required by ITD.  

4. The developer shall donate (at no cost to the City of Rathdrum and/or ITD), all necessary public 

right-of-way and easements on the north-side of SH53 and east-side of Meyer Road adjacent to the 

proposal which may be required to provide traffic improvements for the development. 

5. The developer shall re-construct Meyer Road, from SH53 to the property’s northwest boundary. The 

improvements for Meyer Road shall be in accordance with the City’s collector street typical roadway 

standards, as approved by the City Engineer / Public Works Director. 

6. The new, temporary sewer force main alignment shall be contained within noted / platted vehicle 

access aisles where it crosses the City’s cemetery property. The new, permanent sewer force main 

alignment shall be contained within the Cloverdale Street public right-of-way. Both the temporary 

and permanent sewer force main alignments shall be constructed as part of this project. The 

Cloverdale Street force main alignment shall terminate on the north side of SH53. 

7. The developer shall be responsible for constructing a 16-foot wide all-weather vehicle access aisle, in 

accordance with City requirements, within the sewer force main alignment within the cemetery 

property. 

8. The developer shall construct a temporary sanitary sewer lift station with the Westwood Pines 

development, at the developer’s sole expense. The City shall provide for the required wet well 

volume and technical specifications for: the lift station components, including electrical controls, 

bypass pumping capabilities, emergency power requirement, odor control equipment, telemetry, wet 

well access capabilities, spray-liner requirements for the wet well, site layout of the lift station and 

wet well liquid level sensor devices. Further, the City will provide direction for the sewer piping 

depth (invert elevation) and pipe sizing upstream of the temporary sewage lift station. City financial 

participation pursuant to RCC 9-4-10, Credits and Reimbursements, may be available if upsizing of 

the system is determined necessary. Lastly, this temporary sewer lift station shall be integrated in the 

City’s SCADA monitoring system. The temporary lift station shall be placed within an easement as 

specified by the City Engineer / Public Works Director and shall be owned and operated by the City 

of Rathdrum upon acceptance by the City Council. 



Westwood Pines Prelim Plat Staff_CC Final.doc   7 

 

 

9. The developer shall construct a 12-inch diameter water main in both the Dayton Avenue public right-

of-way alignment (entirety of alignment) and Cloverdale Street. The Cloverdale Street 12-inch water 

main shall terminate on the north side of SH53. 

10. Construction of the temporary sewer force main to serve the development will bring the public sewer 

within 200-feet of the Lion’s Club property which will require such property to connect to the public 

system and abandon their private system within one year of City acceptance of the temporary force 

main. The developer shall be required to provide a lateral stub to service the Lion’s property and is 

encouraged to coordinate with the Lion’s Club regarding timing and payment of their connection to 

the City’s system, including capitalization fees. In no case shall connections for the RV park be 

allowed without written authorization of the Director. Pre-treatment or other provisions may be 

required. 

11. The developer shall enter into a Development Agreement with the City which specifies property and 

term, project regulation and policies, conditions of approval (including improvements to be 

constructed, roadway drainage swales, landscaping / street trees, irrigation water service lines to 

roadway drainage swales and landscaped areas, maintenance of common area landscaping, fencing 

and roadway drainage swales, irrigation system casings, walkways and stormwater, street lights, 

streets, construction access, street closure, phasing, erosion sediment control plan, dedication of right 

of way, dedication of easements and sewer), improvement construction standards and procedures, 

performance guarantee, owner’s warranty, and other City requirements as approved by the City 

Council. 

12. The developer shall install a six-foot tall solid (wood or vinyl, with no gaps between slats) fence 

three-feet south of the northern boundary of the subdivision. 

The developer shall comply with the rules and requirements of any agency with jurisdiction over the project, 

including those agencies which provided comment for this proposal, and all applicable laws, rules and 

regulations governing the project, whether specified herein or not. 

Findings of Fact: 

1. The applicant seeks approval of a preliminary long plat for development of a 113-lot subdivision, 

including 110 residential R-2S lots, 1 well lot, 1 commercial lot and 1 multifamily R-3 lot. 

2. The applicant is the property owner, Viking Construction, Inc., represented by Ray Kimball of 

Whipple Consultant Engineers. 

3. The project is located at NNA W Highway 53 / NNA N Meyer Road, generally at the northwest 

corner of Highway 53 and Meyer Road, to the north and east of the Lion’s Club and ball fields. 

4. The site is currently undeveloped. 

5. The property was annexed into the Rathdrum city limits in 2011 and provided with R-2S, R-3 and C-

2 zoning as found on the City’s current zoning map and in compliance with the City’s 2009 Future 

Land Use Map. 

6. According to the Rathdrum City Code Section 12-3-1-1 every division of land for the purpose of 

sale, lease, or transfer or building development into five (5) or more lots, tracts or parcels within the 

incorporated limits of the City shall proceed in compliance with RCC Title 12. 

7. The proposed lot sizes are: 

a. In the Residential R-2S (low/medium density residential) zone district, 110 lots will range in 

size from 7,540 SF to 21,143 SF in area - with the average lot size being 8,995 SF 

b. In the Residential R-3 (multifamily residential) zone district, 12 lot will be approximately 8.8 

acres.  



Westwood Pines Prelim Plat Staff_CC Final.doc   8 

 

 

c. In the commercial C-2 (highway / service commercial) zone district, one lot of approximately 

11,025 SF is to be dedicated to the City of Rathdrum for the purpose of well placement, and 

the remaining approximately 10.8-acres is a commercial lot. 

8. The minimum lot size required in the R-2S zone district is 7,500 square feet. The minimum lot size 

in the R-3 zone district is 6,000 square feet. There is no minimum lot size required in the C-2 zone. 

9. The application is subject to processing pursuant to RCC 12-3-1-5 and 12-3-1-6. 

10. An open record public hearing after due legal notice was held on January 15, 2020 before the 

Rathdrum Planning and Zoning Commission. 

11. Appearing and testifying on behalf of the City of Rathdrum was City Planner, Cary Siess. 

12. Appearing and testifying on behalf of the applicant was Ray Kimball of Whipple Consulting 

Engineers. 

13. Public testimony from the following individuals was received: 

a. Jim Dugan,  

b. John Leitzke,  

c. Sally Williams,  

d. Richard Williams. 

14. Traffic impacts and fencing of adjacent uses were concerns of the public and Planning and Zoning 

Commission expressed during the public hearing for this proposal. 

15. Admitted into the record were comments from agencies as follows: 

a. Idaho Transportation Department (ITD) 

b. Idaho Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) 

c. Northern Lakes Fire Protection District 

d. Kootenai County Community Development 

e. United States Postal Service 

f. Rathdrum City Engineer / Public Works Director 12/10/19 – Sewer Force Main Alignment 

g. Rathdrum City Engineer / Public Works Director 2/12/20 – Traffic LOS Analysis 

16. Admitted into the record were studies and information provided by the applicant as follows: 

a. Whipple Consulting Engineers, Inc., Westwood Village Subdivision Highway 53 & Meyer 

Road, Rathdrum Trip Generation and Distribution Letter, April 18, 2019 

b. Aquila Geosciences, Inc., Ground Penetrating Radar Survey at the Rathdrum Lion’s Club 

Property at Rathdrum, Idaho, September 7, 1999 

c. Whipple Consulting Engineers, Inc., LOS Analysis Memorandum, February 7, 2020 

d. Scott Krajack, Viking Builders, LLC Land Development Director, House Construction Pace 

Email, February 7, 2020 

17. The Planning and Zoning Commission made their recommendation following review of comments 

received and the facts of the proposal in compliance with RCC 12-3-1-7. 

18. Any conclusion of law which is more appropriately a finding of fact is incorporated herein by this 

reference. 



Westwood Pines Prelim Plat Staff_CC Final.doc   9 

 

 

Conclusions of Law: 

1. The property / project site is appropriately zoned for the proposal. 

2. The application has been processed in compliance with RCC 12-3-1-1, 12-3-1-5 and 12-3-1-6. 

3. Traffic related concerns have been appropriately addressed in the opinion of the City Engineer / PW 

Director. 

4. The Applicant has agreed to install 6-foot sight obscuring fencing and leave a 3-foot buffer between 

such fencing and the northern property line of the subject property. 

5. The proposal conforms, or can conform, with the application of conditions of approval, to the zone 

district regulations, the requirements of RCC Title 12 and is consistent with the Rathdrum 

Comprehensive Plan. 

6. Any finding of fact which is more appropriately a conclusion of law is incorporated herein by this 

reference. 

Council Action:  

This Commission Report is being provided to the Council for consideration at the next regular meeting of the 

Council in compliance with RCC 12-3-1-8 (A). The Council shall review the report and all other relevant 

evidence and take action to approve, reject the recommendation, or return the plat to the Commission for 

modification. 

Pursuant to RCC 12-3-1-8 (B), Council approval shall constitute authorization for the subdivider to develop 

detailed plans and specifications for the improvements and facilities of the subdivision and to prepare the 

final plat in strict accordance with the standards set forth by RCC Title 12 and any conditions imposed by the 

Council. 

Potential Motions:  The language set forth below is provided for guidance with no intent to suggest any 

specific action. 

APPROVAL WITH RECOMMENDED FINDINGS, CONCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF 

APPROVAL (Optional): I move to approve the Westwood Pines Preliminary Long Plat with the 

recommended Finding of Facts, Conditions of Law and Conditions of Approval as found within the 

Planning Commission’s recommendation and staff report dated March 4, 2020, finding that it is in accord 

with the City of Rathdrum Comprehensive Plan and Rathdrum City Code as conditioned. 

ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL (Optional): I further move that the following additional 

conditions be met in accordance with Rathdrum City Code:        

APPROVAL WITH NO CONDITIONS:  I move to approve the Westwood Pines Preliminary Long Plat 

finding that it is in accord with the City of Rathdrum Comprehensive Plan and Rathdrum City Code.  

DENIAL:  I move to deny the Westwood Pines Preliminary Long Plat, finding that it is not in accord 

with Rathdrum City Code or the Rathdrum Comprehensive Plan as follows: (cite section(s) and 

provide conclusion(s) of non-compliance)  

The preliminary plat may also be returned to the Commission for modification pursuant to RCC 12-3-1-8. 

Staff Contact: 

For more information regarding this application, the complete project file, including application materials 

and project history, is available for review at Rathdrum City Hall at 8047 W. Main Street, Rathdrum, Idaho, 

or by contacting Planning staff: 

Cary Siess, City Planner / Planning and Zoning Administrator 



Westwood Pines Prelim Plat Staff_CC Final.doc   10 

 

 

City of Rathdrum Public Works Department, Planning Division  

8047 W. Main Street, Rathdrum, Idaho 83858 

Phone: 208-687-2700 x 117  

Email: cary@rathdrum.org 

  

Attached Exhibits: 

Exhibit A - Project Narrative  

Exhibit B - Agency Comments 

1. Idaho Transportation Department (ITD) 

2. Idaho Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) 

3. Northern Lakes Fire Protection District 

4. Kootenai County Community Development 

5. United States Postal Service 

6. Rathdrum City Engineer / Public Works Director 12/10/19 – Sewer Force Main Alignment 

7. Rathdrum City Engineer / Public Works Director 2/12/20 – Traffic LOS Analysis 

Exhibit C - Studies and Information 

1. Whipple Consulting Engineers, Inc., Westwood Village Subdivision Highway 53 & Meyer Road, 

Rathdrum Trip Generation and Distribution Letter, April 18, 2019 

2. Aquila Geosciences, Inc., Ground Penetrating Radar Survey at the Rathdrum Lion’s Club 

Property at Rathdrum, Idaho, September 7, 1999 

3. Whipple Consulting Engineers, Inc., LOS Analysis Memorandum, February 7, 2020 

4. Scott Krajack, Viking Builders, LLC Land Development Director, House Construction Pace 

Email, February 7, 2020 

Exhibit D - Preliminary Subdivision and Utilities Maps 

1. Preliminary Plat – revised 1.30.20 

2. Utility Plan 10.4.19 

3. 12.12.19 Streets & Drainage Maps 

Exhibit E - Rathdrum City Code Compliance Analysis Matrix 

Exhibit F - Rathdrum Comprehensive Plan Analysis Matrix 

Exhibit G – Annexation Agreement 2011 

Exhibit H – Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes January 15, 2020 



Westwood Pines Prelim Plat Staff_CC Final.doc   11 

 

 

Rathdrum City Code Analysis Matrix 

Code Consistent Discussion 

Rathdrum City Code (RCC) Title 12, Subdivision 

RCC 12 Chapter 1, Definitions 

contains definitions to be used in 

review of the application.  

Yes Such definitions were utilized in review of the proposal. 

RCC 12 Chapter 2, Short Plats 

contains requirements and 

standards for short plats. The 

Chapter is generally not 

applicable to this application with 

the exception of 12-2-2, 

Exemptions. 

NA The proposal is not exempt. 

RCC 12 Chapter 3, Long Plats 

contains requirements and 

standards for long plats. 

Yes and NA This chapter is provided by section below. 

12-3-1, Preliminary Plat “  

• §12-3-1-1, Applicability Yes The division is for the purpose of building development for 

more than five (5) lots. 

• §12-3-1-2, Exemptions NA The proposal is not exempt as found in RCC 12-2-2. 

• §12-3-1-3, Preapplication 

Procedure 

Yes After submission of the application on October 4, 2019 a 

preapplication meeting was held with the applicant and City 

staff on October 30, 2019. 

• §12-3-1-4, Application Fees Yes The applicant submitted the required application, checklist, title 

report and fees. 

• §12-3-1-5, Plats and Plans 

A. Requirements 

B. Adequacy of Plats and 

Plans 

C. Distribution of Plats 

and Plans 

Yes A. The Applicant submitted an application on October 4, 2019 

showing the general layout of roads, lots, blocks and other 

elements of the subdivision. A hearing before the Planning 

and Zoning Commission was scheduled not less than 20 

days after determining the application was complete and 

consistent with RCC 12-3-2, Preliminary Plat Standards, in 

compliance with this section. A pre-construction meeting 

will be required with the public works department prior to 

construction of any infrastructure necessary for this plat. 

B. Staff reviewed the application materials and provided 

comments and/or red lined plans to the applicant on 

October 17, 2019 and October 30, 2019 during the 

preapplication meeting. The applicant resubmitted plans on 

November 7, 2019. Staff again reviewed the materials and 

issued a comment letter and/or red lined plans on December 

11, 2019. The applicant resubmitted plans on December 12, 

2019. Staff determined that plans were complete and 

substantially met the standards set forth in this title. 

Staff provided a Notice of Public Hearing including a 

description of the proposal and invitation to provide 

Exhibit E 



Westwood Pines Prelim Plat Staff_CC Final.doc   12 

 

 

Code Consistent Discussion 

comment to the following agencies on January 2, 2020: 

Lakeland School District, Northern Lakes Fire Department, 

Idaho Department of Environmental Quality, Panhandle 

Health District, Kootenai Metropolitan Planning 

Organization, Idaho Transportation Department, City of 

Rathdrum Police Department, City of Rathdrum Parks and 

Recreation Department and Avista. The Applicant also 

provided notice to agencies prior to application submittal. 

Comments Received: Comments received are attached in 

Exhibit B. 

Idaho Transportation Department (ITD) 

Idaho Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) 

Northern Lakes Fire Protection District 

Kootenai County Community Development 

United States Postal Service 

Rathdrum City Engineer / Public Works Director 12/10/19 

– Sewer Force Main Alignment 

Rathdrum City Engineer / Public Works Director 2/12/20 – 

Traffic LOS Analysis 

• §12-3-1-6, Public Hearing 

A. Notice of Hearing 

B. Continuance of Hearing 

Yes A. Notice of the hearing, including time, place and summary 

of the proposal was posted in the Coeur d’Alene Press on 

December 24, 2019 in compliance with this section, and 

again on January 2, 2020 to correct a typographical error. 

Notice by regular mail to all property owners of land 

situated within three hundred feet of the external boundaries 

of the proposal was provided on January 2, 2020 in 

compliance with this section. 

A Public Notice was posted on the property on January 2, 

2020 in compliance with this section. Notice was also 

posted on the City’s web site and notice board outside of 

City Hall on January 2, 2020. All notices included the date, 

time and place of the hearing as well as a summary of the 

proposal, and the description and location of the subject 

property. 

Furthermore, prior to the date of the public hearing, the City 

issued a written staff report dated January 10, 2020, 

integrating any public comments received regarding the 

application, and made available to the public a copy of the 

Staff Report for review and inspection. A copy of the staff 

report was provided to the Applicant or the Applicant’s 

designated representative and the Planning Commission 

prior to the hearing.  

Staff also provided letters to those members of the public 



Westwood Pines Prelim Plat Staff_CC Final.doc   13 

 

 

Code Consistent Discussion 

who attended the hearing and requested information 

regarding continuance on February 11, 2020 as a courtesy – 

see below.   

B. A public hearing was held before the Rathdrum Planning 

and Zoning Commission on January 15, 2020. The 

Commission took public testimony as found herein. During 

deliberations the Commission requested more information 

from the applicant in relation to traffic and fencing and 

continued deliberations to the next regular meeting to be 

held on February 19, 2020. 

• §12-3-1-7, Commission 

Action 

Yes Following the public hearing, at the next regular meeting on 

February 19, 2020, the Commission considered all relevant 

evidence and comments to determine whether to recommend 

that the Council approve or disapprove the preliminary plat or 

return the preliminary plat to the subdivider for modification. 

The Commission determined that the proposed subdivision 

conforms to the general purpose of the Comprehensive Land 

Use Plan and includes appropriate provisions for streets, 

drainage, alleys and other public ways, open space, water 

supplies, sewage disposal, fire protection and other appropriate 

public and private improvements as required by Code. The 

Commission voted to recommend approval of the proposal, 

subject to conditions of approval as delineated herein. 

• §12-3-1-8, Council Action Unknown The Council shall review the application following receiving 

the Commission’s report and other relevant evidence and take 

action to approve, reject, or return the plat to the commission 

for modification. 

• §12-3-1-9, Expiration of 

Approval 

NA This section is not applicable until approval of the application. 

12-3-2, Preliminary Plat 

Standards 

Yes The application contains the standards as numbered A through 

S of this section. 

12-3-3, Final Plat NA Not applicable at this time. 

12-3-4, Final Plat Standards NA Not applicable at this time. 

RCC 12, Chapter 4, Design and 

Improvement Standards 

contains street, block and lot 

standards for subdivisions, and 

construction plan specifications 

and standards.  

Yes Streets, blocks and lots have been determined to be compliant 

or in keeping with existing approved subdivisions and 

development. 

Construction plans and specifications will be reviewed for 

compliance at the time of submittal of such in the future 

(following preliminary plat approval). 

RCC 12, Chapter 5, Municipal 

Land Donation involves 

municipal land donation. 

NA The City has adopted impact fees which are applicable to the 

project and preempt this chapter. 

RCC 12, Chapter 6, Variances 

deals with Variances for this 
NA No request for variance has been requested. 



Westwood Pines Prelim Plat Staff_CC Final.doc   14 

 

 

Code Consistent Discussion 

Title. 

RCC 12, Chapter 7, Violations 

and Enforcement deals with 

Violations of this Title. 

NA No violations have been found. 

RCC 12, Chapter 8, 

Amendments deals with 

Amendments to this Title 

NA Not applicable to the application. 

RCC Title 7, Public Ways and Property 

RCC 7, Chapter 1, Public 

Works Projects, Performance 

Bonds deals with requirements 

for anyone engaging in municipal 

construction projects such as 

water and sewer main extension 

Yes As 

Conditioned 

Construction of infrastructure to be dedicated to the public will 

be required to conform with the requirements of this chapter, 

including licensing and bonding. The City Council shall 

approve any infrastructure prior to acceptance. 

RCC 7, Chapter 7, Right of 

Way Encroachment deals with 

requirements for working in City 

right of way 

Yes As 

Conditioned 

The developer will be required to obtain permitting from the 

City and provide any required sureties prior to work within 

right-of-way for this development. 

RCC Title 8, Water and Sewer 

RCC 8, Chapter 1, Water 

System deals with metering and 

fees for users of the municipal 

water system 

Yes As 

Conditioned 

The development of lots within the subdivision will be subject 

to the requirements of this chapter. 

RCC 8, Chapter 2, Cross-

Connection Control deals with 

protecting public health by 

controlling actual or potential 

cross-connections and 

contamination of the public water 

system. 

Yes As 

Conditioned 

The development of lots within the subdivision will be subject 

to the requirements of this chapter. 

RCC 8, Chapter 3, Wastewater 

Collection and Disposal deals 

with the regulation of wastewater 

disposal, construction, ownership, 

connections, line extension 

policies, permitting, user charges, 

fees, easements, etc. 

Yes, As 

Conditioned 

Connection to the City’s municipal sewer system is required. 

The developer is responsible to provide services necessary to 

serve the subdivision and dedicate infrastructure to the public 

upon acceptance by the City Council. Construction of 

infrastructure to be dedicated will be required to conform with 

the requirements of this chapter and shall be reviewed at the 

time of construction plan submittal. 

RCC 8, Chapter 4, Wastewater 

Discharge Restrictions defines 

prohibited wastes to the municipal 

sewer system, including but not 

limited to RV waste. 

Yes As 

Conditioned 

Typical domestic waste is not generally applicable to this 

chapter, however, restriction of septic waste, including from 

RVs is. As conditioned the project will be compliant. 

RCC Title 9, Building Regulations 



Westwood Pines Prelim Plat Staff_CC Final.doc   15 

 

 

Code Consistent Discussion 

RCC 9, Chapter 1, Building 

Codes defines adopted 

international codes, and contains 

requirements for building 

permitting and fees 

Yes As 

Conditioned 

Building on individual lots will be subject to review under the 

applicable international codes and permitting by the City at the 

time of development (following final plat approval). 

RCC 9, Chapter 2, Mechanical 

Code and Fuel Gas Installers 

defines adopted international 

codes, and contains requirements 

for permitting and fees 

Yes As 

Conditioned 

Building on individual lots will be subject to review under the 

applicable international codes and permitting by the City at the 

time of development (following final plat approval). 

RCC 9, Chapter 4, 

Development Impact Fee the 

purpose of this chapter is to 

prescribe the procedure whereby 

developers of land shall pay an 

impact fee for the purpose of 

providing the public facilities 

and system improvements 

needed to serve future residents 

and users of such development, 

ensure adequate facilities are 

provided to serve new growth, 

ensure those who benefit from 

the growth and development pay 

their proportionate share of new 

public facilities needed to serve 

the growth and development, 

collect and expend development 

impact fees and ensure capital 

improvements (which are 

approved and listed in the City’s 

Capital Improvement Plan) are 

fully funded by the fees. The 

chapter deals with calculating 

fees, collection, etc. 

Yes As 

Conditioned 

Development impact fees are paid and collected at the time of 

building permitting and calculated based on the use. The capital 

improvements to be financed by the impact fee are those listed 

in the City’s adopted Capital Improvement Plan 

This chapter shall not affect, in any manner, the permissible 

use of property, density of development, design and 

improvement standards and requirements, or any other aspect 

of the development of land or provision of capital 

improvements subject to the zoning and subdivision 

regulations or other regulations of the city, which shall be 

operative and remain in full force and effect without 

limitation with respect to all such development. 

RCC Title 11, Zoning 

RCC 11, Chapter 4, Zoning 

Districts defines zoning districts 

and boundaries as found within 

the adopted City Zoning Map and 

Future Land Use Map 

Yes The zoning districts within the subdivision were established by 

amendment of the City Zoning Map by the City Council at the 

time of annexation of the property. The proposed development 

follows the adopted boundaries within the approved R-2S, R-3 

and C-2 districts. 

RCC 11, Chapter 4, Zoning, 

Article A-2-1, R-2S Residential 

District provides for 

establishment of single family 

Yes The proposed lot configuration within the R-2S zone district 

provides for establishment of a single-family neighborhood 

with sufficient area to provide for minimum lot sizes, setbacks 

and appropriately sized building envelopes when such standards 



Westwood Pines Prelim Plat Staff_CC Final.doc   16 

 

 

Code Consistent Discussion 

neighborhood development 

subject to the established lot area, 

density, setback and other 

provisions of the chapter. 

are applied at the time of building development. 

RCC 11, Chapter 4, Zoning, 

Article A-4, R-3 Residential 

District provides for residential 

environments at a higher density 

than other residential districts, 

commonly known as the 

Multifamily Zone District, 

allowing apartments, townhouses, 

condos, schools, churches and 

other uses subject to the 

established lot area, density, 

setback and other provisions of 

the chapter. 

Yes As 

Conditioned 

There is currently no proposal for development of the 

established R-3 zone within the development, only segregation 

of the zoning from adjacent zone districts as established at the 

time of annexation of the property by the City Council. The 

adopted standards will be applied at the time of development of 

the lot, allowing up to approximately 252 residential units or 

other permitted or conditional uses in the future, subject to 

permitting. 

RCC 11, Chapter 4, Zoning, 

Article B-3, C-2 Highway / 

Service Commercial provides 

area for highway and service 

related businesses on or near main 

arterials as defined within the 

permitted and conditionally 

permitted uses, subject to the 

established density, setback and 

other provisions of the chapter. 

Yes As 

Conditioned 

There is currently no proposal for development of the 

established C-2 zone within the development, only segregation 

of the zoning from adjacent zone districts as established at the 

time of annexation of the property by the City Council. The 

adopted standards will be applied at the time of development of 

the lot in the future, subject to permitting. 

RCC 11, Chapter 5, General 

Provisions and Performance 

Standards, Section 1, General 

Standards provides for required 

right-of-way / frontage 

improvements required at the time 

of land development, including 

driveway approaches, sidewalks, 

fencing, stormwater management, 

and other provisions. 

Yes As 

Conditioned 

The proposal has been reviewed and determined to provide 

adequate lot frontages to accommodate driveways, including 

separation between approaches, areas for stormwater retention, 

sidewalks and other frontage improvements. As conditioned, 

the developer will be required to enter into a Development 

Agreement, as approved by the City Council, which will specify 

project regulation and policies, conditions of approval 

(including improvements to be constructed, roadway 

drainage swales, landscaping / street trees, irrigation water 

service lines to roadway drainage swales and landscaped 

areas, maintenance of common area landscaping, fencing and 

roadway drainage swales, irrigation system casings, 

walkways and stormwater, street lights, streets, construction 

access, street closure, phasing, erosion sediment control plan, 

dedication of right of way, dedication of easements and 

sewer), improvement construction standards and procedures, 

performance guarantee, owner’s warranty, and other City 

requirements in conformance with this chapter. Construction 

plans and specifications will be reviewed for compliance at the 

time of submittal of such in the future. 



Westwood Pines Prelim Plat Staff_CC Final.doc   17 

 

 

Code Consistent Discussion 

RCC 11. Chapter 5, General 

Provisions and Performance 

Standards, Section 2, 

Residential Standards provides 

standards for landscaping, 

driveways and parking, garages, 

accessory buildings and other 

provisions for residential 

development. 

Yes As 

Conditioned 

Plans and specifications will be reviewed for compliance at the 

time of submittal of individual lot development in the future. 

RCC 11. Chapter 5, General 

Provisions and Performance 

Standards, Section 3, 

Commercial, Industrial, Multi-

Family and Institutional 

Standards provides standards for 

landscaping, parking, loading, 

lighting, trash areas, material 

storage and other provisions for 

development. 

Yes As 

Conditioned 

Plans and specifications will be reviewed for compliance at the 

time of submittal of individual lot development in the future. 

RCC 11, Chapter 5, General 

Provisions and Performance 

Standards, Section 4, Site Plan 

Review provides standards to 

ensure commercial, industrial, 

multi-family and institutional 

development are in compliance 

with zoning and other City Code 

requirements and/or policy as 

well as other regulations. 

Yes As 

Conditioned 

Plans and specifications will be reviewed for compliance at the 

time of submittal of individual lot development in the future. 

RCC 11, Chapter 12, 

Development / Annexation 

Agreements provides for the 

opportunity for the City to require 

an agreement, the form of which 

is required by the Zoning 

Administrator. 

Yes As 

Conditioned 

Staff has reviewed the Annexation Agreement for the property 

and determined that the proposal is in keeping with the terms 

and conditions therein. As conditioned, the developer shall 

enter into a Development Agreement with the City, as approved 

by the City Council to address specific project regulation and 

policies, conditions of approval (including improvements to 

be constructed, roadway drainage swales, landscaping / street 

trees, irrigation water service lines to roadway drainage 

swales and landscaped areas, maintenance of common area 

landscaping, fencing and roadway drainage swales, irrigation 

system casings, walkways and stormwater, street lights, 

streets, construction access, street closure, phasing, erosion 

sediment control plan, dedication of right of way, dedication 

of easements and sewer), improvement construction 

standards and procedures, performance guarantee, owner’s 

warranty, and other City requirements in conformance with 

City Code and policy.  



Westwood Pines Prelim Plat Staff_CC Final.doc   18 

 

 

Code Consistent Discussion 

RCC 11, Chapter 16, Signs 

provides for sign standards and 

requirements. 

Yes As 

Conditioned 

Plans and specifications will be reviewed for compliance at the 

time of submittal of individual lot development in the future. 

 



Westwood Pines Prelim Plat Staff_CC Final.doc   19 

 

 

Comprehensive Plan Analysis Matrix 

Goal/Policy Consistent Discussion 

II A. Population 

II A. Population, Goal 1:  Address changing 

growth trends and capacities to work toward a 

moderate and stable rate of long-range 

population growth with orderly development. 

Yes The proposal addresses long-range population 

growth within a subdivision development 

which is consistent with other approved 

development in Rathdrum. 

II A. Population, Goal 2:  Guide future 

development to maintain and enhance the 

quality of life of the population living within and 

directly adjacent to the community. 

Yes As 

Conditioned 

The proposal can address quality of life of the 

property owners located to the north, adjacent 

to Rathdrum, with inclusion of the 

recommended conditions of approval. 

II B. Land Use 

II B. Land Use, Goal 1:  A balance of land use 

guidelines will be applied to preserve and 

enhance the following values:  

• Rural character and small-town feel  

• Access to open space  

• Provision of day-to-day commercial needs  

• Well maintained and inter-connected local 

circulation systems  

• Economically rational development of 

desirable land uses  

• Historic sites  

• Capacity for citizens to live, work and play 

inside the community  

• Public safety  

• Quality of the local natural environment  

• Preservation of a clean and abundant 

aquifer  

• Efficient use of valuable infrastructure. 

Yes As 

Conditioned 

The proposal is consistent with other 

development within Rathdrum. A portion of 

the proposal includes segregation of the 

commercially zoned property from the 

residentially zoned property and will provide 

capacity for provision of day to day 

commercial needs. The proposed subdivision 

will provide inter-connectivity with existing 

streets and provide capacity for citizens to live 

in the community. 

II B. Land Use, Goal 1, Policy A:  Actively engage 

citizens in planning and zoning activities to ensure 

desirable land use practices are applied and 

sustained. 

Yes As 

Conditioned 

The City provided public notice of the 

proposal as required by law and encouraged 

citizens to engage in the subdivision process. 

No comments in opposition of the proposed 

subdivision itself were received. As 

conditioned, fencing and buffering which is 

desirable to the public will be required. 

II B. Land Use, Goal 1, Policy E:  Apply land use 

regulations in a manner respecting overall 

property values while addressing other specified 

community values. 

Yes As 

Conditioned 

As conditioned, fencing and buffering which is 

desirable to the public will be required. 

II E. Public Services 

II E. Public Services, Goal 1, Policy A:  

Coordinate with service providers and public 

safety entities to assure necessary and appropriate 

Yes Service providers and public safety entities 

were provided an opportunity to comment on 

the proposal as required. Such providers can 

Exhibit F 



Westwood Pines Prelim Plat Staff_CC Final.doc   20 

 

 

Goal/Policy Consistent Discussion 

urban services are provided to accommodate 

projected types and densities of growth and 

development.  

accommodate the proposal as found within the 

comment letters provided or by lack of 

comment. 

II E.-1 Public Safety, Goal 1, Policy E: Continue 

to coordinate with fire protection officials to 

ensure that new development is designed so fire 

protection can be effectively provided.   

Yes Northern Lakes Fire Protection District was 

given an opportunity to provide comment on 

the proposal and provided response that fire 

protection can be provided. 

II E.-1 Public Safety, Goal 1, Policy F:  Require 

new development to provide sufficient emergency 

vehicular access for emergency equipment and 

adequate water supply and pressure for the 

purposes of fire protection. 

Yes The proposed subdivision will be required to 

meet these provisions prior to recordation of 

plat or building permitting. 

II E.-1 Public Safety, Goal 1, Policy G:  Require 

development be designed and constructed to 

address the minimization of hazards and the 

enhancement of the effective provision of law 

enforcement and protection.   

Yes As 

Conditioned 

As conditioned, fencing and buffering to 

address possible hazards to the north 

(livestock) will be required. 

II E.-2 Sewer and Water 

II E.-2 Water and Sewer, Goal 1, Policy A: 

Require all existing and proposed facilities within 

the city limits be connected to and serviced by, the 

municipal sewer system.   

Yes Connection to the City sewer system is 

required. 

II E.-2 Water and Sewer, Goal 1, Policy B:  

Promote development in areas with municipal 

sewer and water systems in place.   

Yes Municipal sewer and water lines are located 

adjacent to the proposal and can be extended 

by the developer to provide service for the 

proposal. 

II F. Transportation 

II F. Transportation, Goal 1, Policy A:  Promote 

standards that create functional connections to the 

regional highway system and convenient internal 

circulation.  

Yes As 

Conditioned 

The proposal includes provision of convenient 

internal circulation. As conditioned, functional 

connection to Highway 53 will be 

implemented. 

II F. Transportation, Goal 1, Policy D:  

Incorporate lighting, sidewalks and connections to 

enhance neighborhoods, pedestrian and bike 

pathways, public safety, etc. 

Yes The proposal includes the provision of lighting 

and sidewalks. 

II F. Transportation, Goal 2, Policy H:  Explore 

alternative road and street designs to enhance and 

preserve natural and aesthetic characteristics of 

the community. 

Yes The City Engineer has approved an alternate 

street design for Meyer Road to accommodate 

narrower right of way for protection of the 

City Cemetery and possible cultural site. 

II G. Housing 

II G. Housing, Goal 1:  Apply four primary 

principles, 1) Sense of Community, 2) Variety,                   

3) Affordability and 4) Integration, in the 

Yes The proposal includes lighting and sidewalks 

to encourage walking and cycling and will 

provide increased housing stock which helps 



Westwood Pines Prelim Plat Staff_CC Final.doc   21 

 

 

Goal/Policy Consistent Discussion 

enhancement and maintenance of existing 

residential areas and the design of new housing 

developments.  

A) Sense of Community:  Promote a sense of 

community by encouraging walking and cycling, 

good lighting and safe havens for children while 

providing ready access to shared green space 

and parks.  Housing will be connected to 

commercial areas and civic centers by well-

organized street and pathway systems, 

potentially including public transportation, all 

making it easy for people to meet and interact 

with each other. Neighborhoods should not be 

completely walled off from each other.     

B) Variety:  Provide a broad mix of housing 

choices for a mix of people with differing 

economic means, ages and lifestyles.  Types of 

housing may include, but are not limited to, 

apartments, townhouses, multi-family units, 

manufactured homes and small, as well as large, 

lot single family residences.    

C) Affordability:  Ensure affordable housing is 

available for the local household and family, 

encouraging the creation of a wide range of 

housing, including that which is affordable to 

the community’s average and lower income 

worker and family.  

D) Integration:  Provide a mix of appropriate 

housing choices in neighborhoods suitable for 

seniors as well as youth, young families starting 

out, as well as established single-family 

residences. Neighborhoods should be 

welcoming, inviting, safe and available in every 

sense.  Seniors should not be segregated from 

youth. Young families starting out should not be 

segregated in apartment complexes from single 

family residential neighborhoods. 

keep the market affordable. 

II G. Housing, Goal 2, Policy C:  Enforce 

buffering requirements for non-residential 

activities developed adjacent to residential areas.   

Yes As 

Conditioned 

As conditioned, fencing and buffering along 

the northern property boundary will separate 

the residential subdivision from Agriculturally 

zoned property. 

II G. Housing, Goal 2, Policy F:  Protect the 

continuity and inherent character of existing 

neighborhoods in planning and zoning decisions. 

Yes As 

Conditioned  

As conditioned, fencing and buffering will 

help preserve the character of the properties to 

the north of the development. 

II G. Housing, Goal 5: Accommodate the 

enhancement of current housing and the 

Yes Increased housing stock helps keep the market 



Westwood Pines Prelim Plat Staff_CC Final.doc   22 

 

 

Goal/Policy Consistent Discussion 

development of future housing to ensure 

housing is available in an affordable manner for 

all members of the community. 

affordable. 

II K.-1 Small Town Atmosphere 

II K.-1 Community Design, Small Town 

Atmosphere, Goal 1, Policy A: Implement 

community development tools and land use 

regulations to advance the community’s sense of 

place and small town character. 

Yes The development standards as found within 

Rathdrum City Code, which was developed in 

light of the Comprehensive Plan, have been 

utilized in review of the project. 

II K.-1 Community Design, Small Town 

Atmosphere, Goal 1, Policy C: Consider building 

height and bulk standards for individual districts to 

minimize impacts on views from public spaces  

Yes Building height and bulk standards will be 

applied at the time of lot development in 

conformance with Code. 

II K.-1 Community Design, Small Town 

Atmosphere, Goal 1, Policy D:  Encourage 

preservation, protection and enhancement of 

historic properties in respect of city heritage. 

Yes The proposal incorporates a modified road 

section in order to protect historic burial sites. 

II K.-2 Community Design, Balanced Development 

II K.-2 Community Design, Balanced 

Development, Goal 2, Policy D:  Encourage 

residential development within commercial nodes.  

Yes The proposed residential development is 

within an existing commercial node adjacent 

to Highway 53. 

 



 

Exhibit A 



 



 



 



 



 

Exhibit B 1 



 

2 



 



 



 



 



 

3 



 

4 



 

5 





 



 

6 



 



 

7 



 



 



 

 

 

 

 



 

Exhibit C 1 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 

2 



 



 



 



 



 



 

3 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4 



W E
S

N

C

WESTWOOD PINES
PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION PLAN

LOCATED IN A PORTION OF
SEC 29, TWN 52N, RNG 04W

CITY OF RATHDRUM, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO

PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION 1 OF 1

RDK1"=80'

1"=NA

X

DRAWN:

PROJ #:

REVIEWED:

DATE:NAVD-88

RDK

19-2290

12/06/19

VERTICAL:

HORIZONTAL:

SCALE:

REVISIONSNO.   DATE      BY        
1-23-19RDK ORIGINAL PREPARATIONA

WCE
WHIPPLE  CONSULTING ENGINEERS

21 SOUTH PINES ROAD
SPOKANE VALLEY, WA  99206

PH: 509-893-2617  FAX: 509-926-0227

CIVIL
STRUCTURAL

SURVEYING

TRAFFIC

PLANNING

LANDSCAPE

OTHER

RATHDRUM, ID

WESTWOOD PINES

19-2290
JOB NUMBER

SHEET

  14, SEC.    , T.    N., R.    E., B.M.SW 29 52 04

LIONS CLUB

M
E
Y
E
R

 R
O

A
D

STATE HIGHWAY 53

C-2 ZONING
R-3 ZONING

PHASING

PHASE 1

PHASE 2

PHASE 3

ENGINEERING (CONTACT) OWNER

53

PROJECT
LOCATION

VICINITY MAP

DAYTON AVENUE

ASTORIA LOOP

PELICAN LOOP

C
L
O

V
E
R

D
A
L
E
 S

T
R

E
E
T

BLOCK 1

BLOCK 2

BLOCK 3

BLOCK 4

BLOCK 5PARCEL 1:

A PARCEL OF LAND BEING A PORTION OF THE SOUTH HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER
OF SECTION 29, TOWNSHIP 52 NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST, BOISE MERIDIAN, KOOTENAI
COUNTY, IDAHO, AS SHOWN ON THE RECORD OF SURVEY FILED IN BOOK 22 OF SURVEYS
AT PAGE 124, RECORDS OF KOOTENAI COUNTY, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED
AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTH QUARTER CORNER OF SAID SECTION 29, MONUMENTED BY
A ZINK CAP, 2-1/4 IN. DIAM., FROM WHICH THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION
29 BEARS NORTH 88 DEGREES 42' 46" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 2654.35 FEET;

THENCE ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 29,
NORTH 01 DEGREES 01' 53" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 47.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTH
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF STATE HIGHWAY 53, SAID POINT BEING MONUMENTED BY AN
IRON ROD, 1/2 IN. DIAM., WITH CAP MARKED LS 772;

THENCE ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY, NORTH 89 DEGREES 02' 43" WEST, A DISTANCE OF
3.66 FEET TO A CONCRETE R/W MONUMENT AS SHOWN ON SAID RECORD OF SURVEY;

THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY, NORTH 89 DEGREES 02' 44" WEST, A
DISTANCE OF 1632.53 FEET TO A POINT, SAID POINT BEING THE TRUE POINT OF
BEGINNING FOR THIS DESCRIPTION;

THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY, NORTH 89 DEGREES 02' 44" WEST, A
DISTANCE OF 354.54 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF PARCEL 6370 AS SHOWN ON
SAID RECORD OF SURVEY, BEING MONUMENTED BY AN IRON ROD, 1/2 IN. DIAM., WITH A
CAP MARKED LS 772;

THENCE LEAVING SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID PARCEL 6370,
NORTH 01 DEGREES 02' 28" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 623.19 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST
CORNER OF SAID PARCEL 6370, MONUMENTED BY AN IRON ROD, 1/ 2 IN. DIAM., WITH A
CAP MARKED LS 772;

THENCE ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID PARCEL 6370, NORTH 88 DEGREES 46' 33"
WEST, A DISTANCE OF 663.55 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST
QUARTER, SAID POINT BEING MONUMENTED BY AN IRON ROD, 1/ 2 IN. DIAM., WITH A
CAP MARKED LS 772;

THENCE ALONG SAID WEST LINE, NORTH 01 DEGREES 02' 40" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 657.90
FEET TO AN IRON PIPE, MONUMENTING THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTH HALF
OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER;

THENCE ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTH HALF OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER,
SOUTH 88 DEGREES 50' 20" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 1017.97 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE LEAVING SAID NORTH LINE, SOUTH 01 DEGREES 02' 16" WEST, A DISTANCE OF
1280.54 FEET TO THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING.

PARCEL 2:

A PARCEL OF LAND BEING A PORTION OF THE SOUTH HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER
OF SECTION 29, TOWNSHIP 52 NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST, BOISE MERIDIAN, KOOTENAI
COUNTY, IDAHO, AS SHOWN ON THE RECORD OF SURVEY FILED IN BOOK 22 OF SURVEYS,
AT PAGE 124, RECORDS OF KOOTENAI COUNTY, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED
AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTH QUARTER CORNER OF SAID SECTION 29, MONUMENTED BY
A ZINC CAP, 2-1/4 IN. DIAM., FROM WHICH THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION
29 BEARS NORTH 88 DEGREES 42' 46" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 2654.35 FEET;

THENCE ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 29,
NORTH 01 DEGREES 01' 53" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 47.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTH
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF STATE HIGHWAY 53, SAID POINT BEING MONUMENTED BY AN
IRON ROD, 1/2-IN. DIAM., WITH CAP MARKED LS 772;

THENCE ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY, NORTH 89 DEGREES 02' 43" WEST, A DISTANCE OF
3.66 FEET TO A CONCRETE R/W MONUMENT AS SHOWN ON SAID RECORD OF SURVEY;

THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY, NORTH 89 DEGREES 02' 44" WEST, A
DISTANCE OF 610.52 FEET TO A POINT, SAID POINT BEING THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING
FOR THIS DESCRIPTION;

THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY, NORTH 89 DEGREES 02' 44" WEST, A
DISTANCE OF 1022.01 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE LEAVING SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY, NORTH 01 DEGREES 02' 16" EAST, A DISTANCE OF
1280.54 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTH HALF OF SAID SOUTHWEST
QUARTER;

THENCE ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTH HALF OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER,
SOUTH 88 DEGREES 50' 20" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 1021.94 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE LEAVING SAID NORTH LINE, SOUTH 01 DEGREES 02' 05" WEST, A DISTANCE OF
1276.86 FEET TO THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

CITY LIMITS

CITY LIMITS

CITY LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WELL LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
160

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
XXXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALL TWO BUSINESS DAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEFORE YOU DIG

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONE-CALL NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
811

AutoCAD SHX Text
P:\WCE_WORK\2019 WCE PROJECTS\2019-2290 VIKING- WESTWOOD VILLAGE\DWG\2290-PRELIM PLAT-2.DWG PLOT DATE:01/30/20 PLOT DATE:01/30/2001/30/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE DATA TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERAL DESIGN DATA

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL NUMBERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
R-0000-029-6200,6500

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ZONING

AutoCAD SHX Text
R-2S, R-3,C-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT AREA (ac)

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.0000

AutoCAD SHX Text
R-2S AREA (ac)

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
NUMBER OF LOTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
112

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAXIMUM LOT AREA (SF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
21,143

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINIMUM LOT AREA (SF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
7,540

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY DENSITY (lots/ac)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVERAGE LOT AREA (SF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
8,995

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOMESTIC WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF RATHDRUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER DISPOSAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF RATHDRUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE DEPARTMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERN LAKES FIRE DIST

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAVD-88

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC PROVIDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVISTA

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS PROVIDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVISTA

AutoCAD SHX Text
OTHER PURVEYORS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO BE DETERMINED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 1: 50 SF LOTS, 1 C-2 LOT, 1 R-3 LOT  COMPLETED 2020-21 PHASE 2: 32 SF LOTS  COMPLETED 2021-22 PHASE 3: 28 SF LOTS  COMPLETED 2022-23

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS PRELIMINAR PLAT WAS PREPARED BY: WHIPPLE CONSULTING ENGINEERS 21 S. PINES ROAD SPOKANE VALLEY, WA 99216 PHONE: 893-2617   CONTACT: RAY KIMBALL, P.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VIKING CONSTRUCTION, INC. 19425 E BROADWAY AVE SPOKANE VALLEY, WA 99016 PHONE: 208-762-9106 CONTACT: SCOTT KRAJACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
2290

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMERCIAL PARK AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASTWOOD ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
WESTWOOD ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROTHERS RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
GINA CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WESTWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIMBERLINE RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
B. N. - S. F. R. R.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASIS OF BEARING: THE SOUTH LINE OF THE SW   OF SECTION 14 OF SECTION 29, T53N, R04W, B.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER AND SEWER SERVICE SHALL BE PROVIDED BY THE CITY OF RATHDRUM. STORMWATER SHALL BE TREATED AND DISPOSED OF VIA SWALES AND DRYWELLS AS REQUIRED BY THE CITY OF RATHDRUM.  GAS, ELECTRICITY, AND COMMUNICATIONS WILL BE PROVIDED. ____________________ SCOTT KRAJACK, LAND DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, VIKING CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
40' RIGHT OF WAY DEDICATION TO BE COMPLETED WITH FIRST PHASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' UTILITY EASEMENT TYPICAL ALL SIDE AND  REAR LOT LINES

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' UTILITY EASEMENT TYPICAL ALL SIDE AND  REAR LOT LINES

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' UTILITY EASEMENT TYPICAL ALL SIDE AND  REAR LOT LINES

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' SIDEWALK/UTILITY EASEMENT ADJOINING ALL RIGHT  OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' SIDEWALK/UTILITY  EASEMENT ADJOINING  ALL RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' SIDEWALK/UTILITY  EASEMENT ADJOINING  ALL RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' SIDEWALK/UTILITY  EASEMENT ADJOINING ALL RIGHT  OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' SIGHT OBSCURING FENCE TO  BE CONSTRUCTED SOUTH OF NORTH PROPERTY LINE. CONSTRUCTION TO COINCIDE WITH DEVELOPMENT OF PHASES 2 AND 3. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' SIGHT OBSCURING FENCE TO  BE CONSTRUCTED SOUTH OF NORTH PROPERTY LINE. CONSTRUCTION TO COINCIDE WITH DEVELOPMENT OF PHASES 2 AND 3. 



UTILITY DRAWING 1 OF 1

CTR

 

1"=100'

1"=__'

X

W E
S

N

C

1 inch =     ft.

( IN FEET )

GRAPHIC SCALE

0

100 100 200

100

50

DRAWN:

PROJ #:

REVIEWED:

DATE:NAVD-88

RDK

19-2290

06/12/19

VERTICAL:

HORIZONTAL:

SCALE:

REVISIONSNO.   DATE      BY        
1-23-19RDK ORIGINAL PREPARATIONA

WCE
WHIPPLE  CONSULTING ENGINEERS

21 SOUTH PINES ROAD
SPOKANE VALLEY, WA  99206

PH: 509-893-2617  FAX: 509-926-0227

CIVIL
STRUCTURAL

SURVEYING

TRAFFIC

PLANNING

LANDSCAPE

OTHER

RATHDRUM, ID

WESTWOOD PINES

19-2290
JOB NUMBER

SHEET

  14, SEC.    , T.    N., R.    E., B.M.SW 29 52 04

TYPICAL INTERNAL STREET SECTION

DAYTON AVENUE

ASTORIA LOOP

PELICAN LOOP

C
L
O

V
E
R

D
A
L
E
 S

T
R

E
E
T

M
E
Y
E
R

 R
O

A
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
XXXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALL TWO BUSINESS DAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEFORE YOU DIG

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONE-CALL NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
811

AutoCAD SHX Text
P:\WCE_WORK\2019 WCE PROJECTS\2019-2290 VIKING- WESTWOOD VILLAGE\DWG\2290-OVER.DWG PLOT DATE:10/03/19 PLOT DATE:10/03/1910/03/19

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANS  NOT APPROVED  BY AGENCY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORCE MAIN DISCHARGE MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER FORCE MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 12" WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SEWER LIFT STATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" GRAVITY SEWER (TYPICAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATER MAIN (TYPICAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.0%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
3:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' SIDEWALK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' SIDEWALK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' SIDEWALK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' SIDEWALK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' SIDEWALK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' SIDEWALK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' SIDEWALK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' SIDEWALK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWALE BOTTOM 0.8' BELOW FLOWLINE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCT ROLLED CURB AND GUTTER PER CITY OF RATHDRUM STANDARD DETAIL NOTE: TBC=CENTERLINE-0.10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.0%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWALE BOTTOM 0.8' BELOW FLOWLINE.



































 

 

Exhibit G 



 



 



 

 

 

 



 



 

 



 



 

 



 

 



 

 

Planning and Zoning Meeting Minutes  January 15, 2020 

     

RATHDRUM 
     PLANNING AND ZONING 

 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

 

 MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, January 15, 2020 

6:00 PM 
 

 

      PRESENT:   Commissioner Furey, Commissioner Carr, Commissioner Shuman 

      ABSENT:      Commissioner Munyer and Commissioner Hatcher  

       

STAFF:   Planner Siess, Attorney Herrington and Assistant Planner Davey 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

MINUTES:  Approval of the meeting minutes for December 18, 2019 as they are presented 

made in a motion by Commissioner Shuman and seconded by Commissioner Carr. 

All in favor stating aye. 

  

VISITOR: None 

 

PUBLIC HEARING: Westwood Pines Subdivision 

 

Open the Public Hearing:  

 

Commissioner Furey stated the public hearing process. 

Planner Siess gave an overview of the project with mentioning the location being north of 

Highway 53 and west of Meyer Road, a subdivision consisting of 113 lots on approximately 

50 acres, the zoning being Residential R-2S for 110 lots with the average lot size being 8,995 

square feet with two commercial lots. One lot located within the Residential R-3 and 

Residential R-2S zone district (split zoning) of approximately 8.8 acres will also be created. 

The plat will include dedication of right-of-way for extension of Meyer Road, and the other 

interior streets / sidewalks that will serve the development. Also, within the subdivision, one 

lot is dedicated to the City of Rathdrum for the purpose of a well to be constructed at a later 

date and with an easement to the east of the project along the R-3 zoning will be provided for 

a temporary sewer lift station. 

 

Agency comments regarding the proposal were received from Northern Lakes Fire 

Department, Idaho Transportation Department and Department of Environmental Quality. 

 

Exhibit G 



 

 

Planning and Zoning Meeting Minutes  January 15, 2020 

This parcel was annexed into the city limits in 2011 and subject to the Annexation 

Agreement recorded with the Kootenai County Recorder’s office. 

 

Applicant: 

 

Ray Kimball of Whipple Consulting Engineers 

2104 Calmine CT 

Post Falls, ID 83854 

Mr Kimball is representing Viking Construction and began by thanking the commissioners 

for their service on the board and acknowledged that their time is appreciated. 

 

He stated the same information as the planner did above regarding location, number of lots, 

zoning, lot sized and the design of the streets within the subdivision. The traffic that will be 

generated by this subdivision will be accommodated by a traffic light that will be installed in 

the future at Meyer Road and Highway 53. They will be paving Meyer Road along their 

property with full utility infrastructure in all streets. It is currently planned to be developed in 

three phases. The sewer line that will supply the lift station will be ran along a street in the 

cemetery and will be paved.  

Mr Kimball pointed out that the subdivision standards have been met with this submittal of 

Westwood Pines, being that it is in compliance with the city’s comprehensive plan, street 

standards, drainage, city utilities and installing the temporary sewer lift station that is 

proposed in the Sewer Master Plan. Once the new sewer lift station is installed along Meyer 

Road south of this project, then this one will be taken offline. 

 

Planner Siess gave an explanation of the two interior streets; Cloverdale Street and Meyer 

Road being that once there are more than 150 lots in a subdivision, there is a requirement per 

fire code to have two entrances to the subdivision.  

 

Commissioner Furey asked if the developer was required to dedicate any ‘green space’ with 

this subdivision submittal? Planner Siess explained that in leu of donating property, that the 

city will collect a park impact fee when building permits are issued. 

 

Public testimony: 

Jim Dugan 

6302 W Mallory Road 

Rathdrum, ID 83858 

Mr Dugan lives just north of the project and is concerned about his livestock and questioned 

whether or not the developer will install a perimeter fence around this project. He also 

commented that he uses Meyer Road for his main access and is concerned about the extra 

traffic this subdivision will generate. 

 

John Leitzke 

5943 W Highway 53 

Rathdrum, ID 83858 

Mr Leitzke would like to see fencing install around the property of the project and questioned 

just where the sewer lift station was going to be installed since he lives directly east of this 

subdivision.   

 



 

 

Planning and Zoning Meeting Minutes  January 15, 2020 

 

Sally Williams 

5922 W Mallory Road 

Rathdrum, ID 83858 

Ms Williams stated that she also lives just north of this project and would like to see a fence 

installed along the perimeter of the subdivision. 

 

Rebuttal: 

Mr Kimball stated that fencing has not been discussed by the developer, but they feel that 

most homeowners would put up their own fencing. Also, the developer has an agreement 

with the Lion’s Club to tap their small RV park along Meyer Road with sewer stubs for each 

RV. 

 

 

Richard Williams 

5922 W Mallory Road 

Rathdrum, ID 83858 

Mr Williams lives just north of this proposed subdivision and is concerned about the survey 

being done for this project and how will affect his property and is worried about the safety of 

his horses. 

 

Close the Public Hearing 

 

Commissioners open discussion: they understand the concern of having a perimeter fence for 

safety and some sort of a buffer for neighboring properties. The traffic in this area of 

Highway 53 and Meyer Road is very congested already and with two schools (High School 

and Stem Academy) generating a lot of traffic. The need for a complete traffic study is 

required for such a congested area and the subdivision will be generating even more traffic. 

The application itself is in compliance with Rathdrum city code and everything seems to be 

in order. 

 

Motion made by Commissioner Furey, to table this proposal, giving the applicant more time 

to do a traffic study and confer with the city engineer. Also, to address fencing around the 

property to make it more secure for the residence. Seconded by Commissioner Carr 

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Furey – aye 

Shuman – aye 

Carr – aye 

 

All in favor stating aye 

 

It is confirmed that this motion is tabled until the next regularly scheduled meeting, unless 

the applicant has the information requested earlier, then the city would schedule a special 

meeting with sufficient posting. 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS – Food Trucks and Food Truck Courts 



 

 

Planning and Zoning Meeting Minutes  January 15, 2020 

Planner Siess stated that the City of Rathdrum currently does not have a code to 

accommodate food trucks. Open discussion was done regarding food courts versus food 

trucks parking along side the road or parking lots. Permission from landowners to operate 

and the traffic flow that would be generated from both types. Allowing food trucks during 

special events without having to get a permit from the City. Requiring a Panhandle Health 

inspection along with a city permit. What to charge for a permit and how often to have them 

renewed. Commissioners asked what other jurisdiction did with this process and suggested 

that perhaps the City of Coeur d’Alene’s planner could come to one of our meetings and give 

us some ideas on how to get started. 

 

 

 

  

 

 

ADJOURNMENT  

 


	01a Council Agenda 03-11-20
	01b March Calendar
	05a Draft Council Minutes 02-26-20
	05b March Bills
	09a City of Rathdrum Connect Migration Budgetary Quote
	09ab Phone server
	09b Memo KJ-CC - SH41 Widening - 3.5.2020
	09c Memo KJ-CC Lancaster-Meyer - 3.5.2020
	09d Memo KJ-CC Deadwood R-W Donation - 3.5.2020
	09e Westwood Pines Prelim Plat Staff_CC Final
	09ea Westwood Pines Ex.A--Narrative
	09eb Westwood Pines Ex.B--Agency Comments
	09ec Westwood Pines Ex.C--Studies and Info
	09ed Westwood Pines Ex.D1--PRELIM PLAT 1.30.20
	09ef Westwood Pines Ex.D2--UTILITY PLAN 10.4.19
	09eg Westwood Pines Ex.D3--Streets & Drainage 12.12.19
	09eh Westwood Pines Ex.G--Annexation Agreement 2011
	09ei Westwood Pines Ex.H--PZ Minutes 1-15-2020

